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Statutory auditors' report on the consolidated financial statements 

Y ear ended 31 December 2013 

To the Shareholders, 

In compliance with the assignment entrusted to us by your annual general meeting, we hereby 
report to you, for the year ended 31 December 2013, on: 

• the audit of the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Tarkett; 

• the justification of our assessments; 

• the specifie verification required by law. 

These consolidated financial statements have been approved by the Management Board. Our 
rote is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audit. 

1 Opinion on the consolidated financial statements 

We conducted our audit in accordance with professional standards applicable in France; those 
standards require that we plan and perfonn the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about 
whether the consolidated financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit 
involves performing procedures, using sampling techniques or other methods of selection, to 
obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial 
statements. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used 
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made, as weil as the overall presentation of the 
consolidated financial statements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is 
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion. 



3 Specifie verification 

Tarkett 
Statutory auditors' report on the 

consolidated financial statements 

As required by law we have also verified, in accordance with professional standards applicable 
in France, the information relative to the Group, given in the parent cornpany's management 
report. 

We have no matters to report asto its fair presentation and its consistency with the consolidated 
financial statements. 

The statutory auditors, 

Paris La Défense and Paris on the 17 February 2014 

KPMG Audit 
Department of KPMG S.A. 

Philippe Grandclerc 
Partner 

Praxor Audit 

Florent Gesbert 
Partner 
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Tarkett 
Statutory• auditors ' refJOrt 011 the 

conso/idated financial statements 

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the assets and 
liabiJities and of the financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2013 and of the results of 
its operations for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting 
Standards as adopted by the European Union. 

Without qualifying our opinion, we draw attention to the notes ''1.2.1 Accounting policies" and 
"1 .5.24 Reconciliation of early adoption of IFRS 11 and reclassifications" to the consolidated 
financial statements, describing the changes in accounting policies implemented as at 
ts• January 2013 and their impacts on bath the consolidated financial statements and the 
comparative financial information. 

2 Justification of our assessments 

In accordance with the requirements of article L.823-9 of the French Commercial Code ("Code 
de commerce"), we bring to your attention the following matters: 

• Accounting estimates: 

Notes "1.2.2 Use of estimates andjudgments" and "26 Other contingencies" to the consolidated 
financial statements disclose the assessments and significant estimates made by Tarkett' s 
management. 

In connection with our audit, we considered that those assessments and estimates related mainly 
to intangible and tangible assets (note 1.5.10, 1.5.11, 1.5.15, 8 and 9), deferred tax assets (notes 
1.5.22, 7 and 19), provisions (notes 1.5.20 and 20) and employee benefits (notes 1.5.18 and 21). 

For these accounts, our work consisted in assessing the data and assumptions underlying the 
assessments and estimates, reviewing on a sample basis, the calculations performed by the 
Company, comparing prior years accounting estimates with the corresponding actual results, 
reviewing management' s approval procedures for such estimates and reviewing that the 
disclosures relating to these estimates in the notes to the financial statements are appropriate. 

These assessments were made as part of our audit of the consolidated financial statements taken 
as a whole, and therefore contributed ta the opinion we formed which is expressed in the first 
part of this report. 
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Tarkett 
CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT 

Dec 31, 2012 
Note Dec 31, 2013 restated * 

Continuing operations 

Net revenue 2,516.4 2,291.5 

Cost of sales (1,892.8) (1,765.8) 
Gross profit 623.7 525.7 

Other operating income (5) 8.9 7.6 
Selling and distribution expanses (248.8) (213.5) 
Research and dewlopment expanses (25.8) (19.8) 
General and administratiw expenses (162.3) (136.2) 
Other operating expenses (5) (14.8) (10.3) 
Results from operating activities (3) 180.9 153.5 

Financial income 1.6 2.5 
Financial expenses (33.0) (26.5) 
Net finance costs (6) (31.4) (24.0) 

Share of profit of equity accounted inwstees (net of income tax) (1.4) (1 .9) 
Profit before income tax 148.2 127.5 

lncome tax expanses (7) (47.9) (42.3) 
Profit from contlnuing operations 100.3 85.2 

Discontinued operations 

Profit 1 (loss) from discontinued operations (net of incorne tax) 
Profit for the period 100.3 85.2 

Attributable to: 
Owners of the Company 99.1 83.6 
Non-controlling interests (NCI) 1.2 1.6 
Profit for the period 100.3 85.2 

Earnings per share 
Basic eamings per share (in EUR) (14) 1.60 1.35 
Diluted eamings per share (in EUR) (14) 1.58 1.34 

Continuing operations 
Basic eamings per share (in EUR) (14) 1.60 1.35 
Diluted eamings per share (in EUR) (14) 1.58 1.34 

*Comparatiw periods were restated following the retrospectiw application of IFRS 11. Please refer to note 1.5.24 
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Tarkett 
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 

Profit for the period 

Other comprehensive lncome (OCI) 

Foreign currency translation differences for foreign operations 
Changes in fair -.elue of cash flow hedges 
lncorne tax on other comprehensive incorne 
OCI to be reclassified to profit and loss in subsequent periods 

Defined benefit plan actuarial gains (Joss es) 
lncome tax on other comprehensive income 
OCI not to be reclassifled to profit and Joss in subsequent perlods 

Other comprehensive lncome for the period, net of income tax 

Total comprehensive lncome for the perlod 

Attributable to: 
OWners of the Company 
Non-controlling interests 
Total comprehensive lncome for the perlod 

Dec 31,2013 

100.3 

(31.0) 
6.4 

(2.2) 
(26.8) 

17.2 
(5.0) 
12.1 

(14.7) 

85.6 

84.9 
0.7 

85.6 

Dec 31,2012 
restated * 

85.2 

(8.9) 
0.2 

(8.8) 

(28.9) 
8.8 

(20.1) 

(28.9) 

56.3 

54.8 
1.4 

56.3 

*Comparative periods were restated following the retrospective application of IFRS 11 . Please refer to note 1.5.24 
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Tarkett 
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 

Dec 31, 2012 
Note Dec 31,2013 restated * 

ASSETS 
Goodwill (8) 425.6 449.1 
Intangible assets (9) 110.9 98.4 
Property, plant and equipment (9) 415.4 428.7 
Financial assets (9) 27.5 29.3 
Deferred tax assets (19) 92.7 96.2 
Other non-current assets (12) 0.2 
Non-current assets 1,072.3 1,101.7 

lnwntories (10) 318.6 333.3 
Trade receivables (11) 279.7 287.6 
Other receivables (12) 59.2 59.9 
Gash and cash equivalents (15) 96.7 81 .1 
Current assets 754.2 762.0 

TOTAL ASSETS 1,826.5 1,863.7 

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 
Share capital (13) 318.6 316.1 
Share premium and reserws 145.6 138.8 
Retained eamings 126.9 145.0 
Net result for the period 99.1 83.6 
Equity attributable to owners of the Company 690.2 683.6 
Non-controlling interests 6.1 10.1 
Total equity 696.3 693.7 

lnterest-bearing loans and borrowings (15) 501.3 335.7 
Other financialliabilities (16) 4.7 6.8 
Deferred tax liabilities (19) 10.8 5.4 
Employee benefits (21) 122.3 142.2 
Pro\1sions and other non-current liabilities (20) 41.2 38.1 
Non-current llabilities 680.2 528.1 

Trade payables (17) 219.8 244.3 
Other liabilities (18) 167.0 162.6 
lnterest-bearing loans and borrowings (15) 24.4 187.2 
Other financial liabilities (16) 5.0 11.6 
Pro\1sions and other current liabilities (20) 33.7 36.2 
Current liabilltles 450.0 641.9 

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 1,826.5 1,863.7 

*Comparatiw periods were restated following the retrospectiw application of IFRS 11. Please refer to note 1.5.24 
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Tarkett 
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 

Cash flows from operating activlties 

Net profit before tax 
Adjustments for: 

Depreciation and amortization 
(Gain) loss on sale of fixed as sets 
Net finance costs 
Change in pro\1sions and other non-cash items 
Share of profit of equity accounted in'.A:lstees, net of tax 

Operating cash flow before worklng capital changes 

lncrease (-) 1 Decrease (+)in trade receivables 
lncrease (-) 1 Decrease (+)in other receivables 
lncrease (-) 1 Decrease (+)in in'.A:lntories 
lncrease (+) 1 Decrease (-)in trade payables 
lncrease (+) 1 Decrease (-)in other payables 
Effect of changes ln working capital 

Cash generated from operations 

lnterest pald 
lncome taxes paid 
Otheritems 
Other operating Items 

Net cash from operatlng actlvltles 

Cash flows from lnvestlng activltles 

Acquisition of subsidiaries net of cash acquired 
Acquisition of property, plant and equipment 
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 

Net cash used ln investing actlvltles 

Cash flows from financlng actlvltles 

Acquisition of non-controlling interests 
Proceeds from loans and borrowings 
Repayment of loans and borrowings 
Payment of finance lease liabilities 
Disposai of treasury shares 
Dillidends paid 

Net cash from 1 (used ln) flnanclng activitles 

Net increase 1 (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of period 
Effect of ex change rate fluctuations on cash held 

Cash and cash equivalents, end of period 

(2) 
(9) 
(9) 

Dac 31, 2013 

148.2 

105.5 
(0.3) 
31.4 
10.4 
1.4 

296.4 

2.4 
2.0 

(21.4) 
0.7 

(16.3) 

280.2 

(25.6) 
(47.8) 
(1 .2) 
(74.5) 

205.6 

(3.5) 
(100.5) 

0.9 

(103.1) 

(4.4) 
504.0 

(496.3) 
(0.4) 
38.1 

(124.8) 

(83.8) 

18.8 

81 .1 
(3.2) 

96.7 

Dec 31, 2012 
restated * 

127.5 

88.8 

24.0 
7.6 
1.9 

250.0 

28.3 
(6.6) 

(20.0) 
28.7 
16.9 
47.2 

297.2 

(21.9) 
(45.3) 

0.8 
(66.5) 

230.7 

(259.2) 
(84.8) 

0.7 

(343.3) 

211.8 
(70.3) 
(0.8) 

140.7 

28.1 

53.7 
(0.6) 

81.1 

*Comparati'.A:l periods were restated following the retrospective application of IFRS 11. Please refer to note 1.5.24 
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Tarkett 
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY 

Share 
Share . 

Retained premium and Translation 
capital res eN:~ eamings 

reser.es 

Balanc:e at January 1, 2012- Restated • 316.1 138.8 (63.0) 234.1 
Net profit for the period 83.6 
Other comprehenslw lncome (8.7) (20.1) 
Total comprehensive lncome for the perlod (8.7) 63.5 

Own shares (acqulred) 1 sold (0.9) 
Share based payment transactions 2.5 
Acquisition of NCI without a change in control 1.2 
Acquisition of substdiary with NCI (0.2) 
Totaltransactlonswlth shareholders 2.7 
Ba lanc:e at De cambe r 31, 2012 -Resta led • 316.1 138.8 (71.8) 300.3 

Balance atJanuary 1, 2013 316.1 138.8 (71.8) 300.3 
Net profit lor the peliod 99.1 
Other comprehensh.e lnc;ome (30.5) 16.4 
Total comprehensive lncome for the perlod (30.5) 115.4 

Diloidends (124.8) 
Own shares (acquired) 1 sold 38.1 
Share based payment 6.2 
Acquisition of NCI without a change in control (0.5) 
Issue of shares 1 SIF and Partholdl mergers lnto Tarkelt 2.5 6.8 (5.6) 
Other (0.9) 
Total transactions wlth shareholders 2.5 6.8 (87.4) 
Balanc:e at Dec:ember 31, 2013 318.6 145.6 (102.3) 328.3 

"Comparatiw periods were restated following the retrospectiw application of IFRS 11. Please refer to note 1.5.24 

Consolidated financial statements 
Year ended December 31, 2013 

Non-
Total 

Total controlling 
interests 

equity 

626.0 8.7 634.8 
83.6 1.6 85.2 

(28.8) (0.1) (28.9) 
54.8 1.4 56.3 

(0.9) (0.9) 
2.5 2.5 
1.2 1.2 

(0.2) (0.2) 
2.7 2.7 

683.6 10.1 693.7 

683.4 10.1 693.7 
99.1 1.2 100.3 

(14.2) (0.5) (14.7) 
84.9 0.7 85.6 

(124.8) (124.8) 
38.1 38.1 
6.2 6.2 

(0.5) (4.8) (5.3) 
3.6 3.6 

(0.9) (0.9) 
(78.1) (4.8) (83.0) 
690.2 6.1 696.3 
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Tarkett 
GENERAL INFORMATION 

Tarkett's consolidated financial statements at December 31, 2013 comprise the Company and its subsidiaries 
(hereafter the "Group") as weil as its interests in associates and joint ventures. 

Tarkett is a leading global flooring company, providing integrated flooring and sports surface solutions to 
professionals and end-users in the residential and commercial markets. The Group is domiciled in France. The 
company's registered office is at 2 rue de l'égalité, Nante"e. 

February 171
h, 2014, the Board of Directors established and authorized the publication of the Consolidated Financial 

Statements of the Group for the year ended December 31 , 2013, which will be submitted for approval ta the 
shareholders' meeting to be held on May 131

h, 2014. 

NOTE 1 - SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES 

1.1 STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE 

The Consolidated Financial Statements of the Group (including the notes thereto) have been prepared in 
accordance with the IFRS (International Flnancial Reporting Standards) as adopted by the European Union as of 
Oecember 31, 2013. 

1.2 BASIS OF PREPARATION 

1.2.1 ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

The accounting policies applied by the Group in the Consolidated Flnancial Statements as of Oecember 31 , 2013, 
are the sa me as th ose used as of December 31, 2012 with the exception of the changes described be law: 

a Effective amendments or revisions to existing standards and interpretations applied during the 
period 

The Group has applied the following amendments or revisions to existing standards and interpretations in the 
preparation of its consolidated financial statements. Those amendments and interpretations were approved by the 
European Union and their application was mandatory: 

As a result of the amendment to IFRS 7 "Disclosures - Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Uabilities", the 
Group has expanded its disclosures about the offsetting of financial assets and financial llabilities. This 
amendment has no significant impact on the consolidated financial statements. 
Amendment to lAS 1 "Presentation of Items of Other Comprehensive Incarne": This amendment requires that an 
entity presents separately the items of other comprehensive Incarne that would be reclassified to profit and Joss, 
in the future if certain conditions are met, from those that would never be reclassified to profit and Joss. The 
amendment also changes the title of the statement of comprehensive incarne to the statement of profit and Joss 
and other comprehensive incarne. 
Amendment to JAS 19 "Employee Benefits": lAS 19 revised (2011) requires ali remeasurements to be 
recognized directly in other comprehensive incarne. As Tarkett was already using this method this amendment 
has no impact for the Group. Furthermore lAS 19 (2011) requires that remaining unvested past service costs 
that used to be spread over the vesting period, are to be recognized directly in P&L. This change has a non­
significant impact of €0,5m as at Oecember 31, 2012. lAS 19 (2011) also changes the basis for determining the 
incarne or expanse related to defined benefit plans. As a result of the change, the Group now determines the net 
interest expense (incarne) on the net defined benefit liability (asset) for the period by applying the discount rate 
used to measure the defined benefit obligation at the beginning of the annual period to the net defined benefit 
liability (asset) at the beginning of the annual period. lt takes into account any changes in the net defined benefit 
liability (asset) durlng the period as a result of contributions and benefit payments. The net interest on the net 
defined benefit liability (asset) comprises: interest cost on the defined benefit obligation and interest incarne on 
plan assets. Previously, the Group determined interest incarne on plan assets based on their long-term rate of 
expected return . This change has a €1.1m impact for the year ended December 31, 2012. 
IFRS 13 "Fair value measurement": IFRS 13 defines fair value, establishes a framework for measuring fair value 
and sets out related disclosure requirements. IFRS 13 does not give rise to any new requirements as to when 
fair value measurements are required or permitted under other IFRSs. lt replaces the sometimes inconsistant 
fair value measurement guidance currently included in individuals IFRSs, with a single source of authoritatlve 
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Tarkett 
guidance on how to measure fair value. This amendment requires further disclosure requirements (specifically 
fair value of financial assets and liabllities by levet of fair value hierarchy), as detailed in Note 15. ln accordance 
with IFRS 13 transitional provisions, the Group has applied the new fair value measurement guidance 
prospectively and has not provided any comparative information for new disclosures and there has been no 
significant impact on the consolidated financial statements. 
Annual improvements: no significant impact on the annual consolidated financial statements. 

b Early adoption of standards or interpretations during the period 

The Group has early adopted the standard IFRS 11 "Joint arrangements" and IFRS 12 "Disclosure of interest in 
other entities". 

Under IFRS 11, interests in joint arrangements are classified as either joint operations (if the Group has rights to the 
assets, and obligations for the liabilities relating to the arrangement) or joint ventures (if the Group has rights only to 
the net assets of an arrangement). The Group has analyzed its only joint venture and concludes to qualify it as a 
joint operation. This change implies the restatement of comparative period of reporting. Relative impacts are 
described below. This change only concerns Laminate Park GmbH & Co KG, jointly controlled with the group Sonae 
in Germany. 

IFRS 10 MConsolidated Financial Statements" introduces a new control model that focuses on whether the Group 
has power over an investees, exposure or rights to variable retums from its involvement with the investee and ability 
to use its power to affect those returns. There has been no impact on the Group control system. 

As a result of IFRS 12 "Disclosure of interest in other entities", the Group has expanded its disclosures about its 
interests in subsidiaries and equity-accounted investees. The Group consolidates severa! structured entities holding 
funds which use is restricted. The risk associated with these entities is limited to credit risk considered very low to 
the extent that funds are placed with leading financial institutions. 

Impacts on 2012 published figures are detailed in part 1.5.24. 

The Group also applied IFRS 10, 12, lAS 27R and lAS 28R. 

c. New standards and interpretations not yet adopted 

The following table lists the recent change to IFRS available to early adoption but not mandatory and not applied by 
the Group. 

January 15
\ 2014 Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities (Amendments to lAS 32) 

January 151
, 2014 lnvestment Entities (Amendments to IFRS 10, IFRS 12 and lAS 27) 

January 1 st, 2014 Recoverable Amount Disclosures for Non-Financial Assets (Amendments to lAS 36) 

January 151
, 2014 IFRIC 21 Levies 

1.2.2 USE OF ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS 

The preparation of financial statements in accordance with IFRS requires management to make estimates and 
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities at the date of preparation of the financial 
statements and reported income and expanses for the period. The management reviews these estimates and 
assumptions on an ongoing basis, by reference to past experience and various other factors considered as 
reasonable which form the basis for assessing the carrying amount of assets and liabilities. Actual results may differ 
significantly from these estimates, if different assumptions or circumstances apply. 

These judgments and estimates relate principally to: 
Measurement of the fair value of the consideration transferred, NCI and assets acquired and liabilities assumed. 
Such allocations may involve the use of assumptions in respect of future cash flows (note 2). 
lmpairment testing of assets: Group management has undertaken those tests on the basis of its best estimates 
of the future activity of the relevant cash-generating units and of appropriate discount rates (note 8 and note 9). 
Accounting treatment of financial instruments: the Group has performed the requisite valuation procedures and 
has tested the effectiveness of its hedging instruments (note 24). 

Consolidated financial statements 
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Tarkett 
Provisions for employee benefits: provisions have been estimated with the assistance of an external actuary 
(note 21 ). 
The net tax position reflects the Group's best estimate of the trend of its future results for tax purposes (note 19). 
Ali other provisions, such as warranties and litigations, have been booked upon management best estimate 
using when necessary statistical approaches (note 20). 

ln preparing these financial statements, the significant judgements made by management in applying the Group's 
accounting policies and the key sources of estimation uncertainty were the same as those applied to the 
consolidated financialstatements as of and for the year ended December 31 , 2012. 
Where the accounting treatment of a specifie transaction is not addressed by any accounting standard or 
interpretation, the management applies its judgment to define and apply accounting policies that willlead to relevant 
and reliable information, so that the financialstatements: 

provide a true and fair view of the Group's financial position, financial performance and cash flows; 
reflect the substance of transactions; 
are prepared on a prudent basis; 
and are complete in ali material aspects. 

The Group's consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis with the exception of 
the following assets and liabilities which have been measured at fair value: derivatives, investments held for trading 
and available-for-sale financial assets, pension plan assets and other assets when required. 
The carrying amount of assets and liabilities subject to fair value hedging has been adjusted in line with the changes 
in fair value attributable to the hedged risks. 

1.3 BASIS OF PRESENTATION 

lncome statement 

Expenses are classified in the income statement according to their function. 

Statement of flnancia/ position 

The balance sheet distinguishes current and non-current assets and current and non-current liabilities. Current 
assets comprise assets intended to be sold or consumed during the Group's normal operating cycle and cash or 
cash equivalents. Other assets are classified as non-current assets. Current liabilities comprise liabilities with 
maturities during the Group's normal operating cycle or within twelve months of the balance sheet date. Other 
liabilities are classified as non-current liabilities. Deferred tax assets and liabilities, as required by lAS 1 "Financial 
Statements Presentation", are exclusively ctassifled as non-current. 

Statement of cash flow 

The statement of cash flow is presented using the indirect method. 

Statement of Comprehensive /ncome 

The statement of comprehensive income includes other lncome or expanses that are not recognized in profit and 
Joss as authorized by the IFRS. 

1.4 BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION 

Subsid/aries 

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The Group controls an entity when it is exposed to, or has right to, 
variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over 
the entity. 

The financial statements of subsidiaries are included in the consolidated financial statements from the date that 
control commences until the date that control ceases. 

The accounting policies of subsidiaries have been changed when necessary to align them with the policies adopted 
by the Group. 
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Lasses applicable to the non-controlling interests in a subsidiary are allocated to the non-controlling interests, even if 
doing so causes the non-controlling interests to have a deficit balance. 

ln case of a loss of control, the Group derecognises the assets and liabilities of the subsidiary, any non-controlling 
interest and the other components of equity related to the subsidiary. 
Any surplus or deficit arising from the loss of control is recognised in profit and loss. Any interest retained in the 
former subsidiary is measured at fair value when control is lost. 

lnterests in equity-accounted investees 

The Group's interests in equity-accounted investees comprise interests in associates and a joint venture. 

Associates are those entities in which the Group has significant influence, but not control or joint control, over the 
financial and operating policies. A joint venture is an arrangement in which the group has joint control, whereby the 
Group has right to the net assets of the arrangement, rather than rights to its assets and obligations for its liabilities. 

lnterests in associates and the joint venture are accounted for using the equity method. They are recognised initially 
at cast, which includes transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, the consolidated financial statements 
include the Group's share of the profit or loss and OCI of equity accounted investees, until the date on which 
significant influence or joint control ceases. 

Transactions eliminated on consolidation 

lntra-group balances and transactions, and any unrealised incarne and expenses ansmg from intra-group 
transactions, are eliminated. Unrealised gains arising from transactions with equity accounted investees are 
eliminated against the investment to the extent of the Group's interest in the investee. Unrealised !osses are 
eliminated in the same way as unrealised gains, but only to the extent that there is no evidence of impairment. 

1.5 ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

The accounting policies described hereafter have been applied to ali the periods presented in the consolidated 
financial statements and have been uniformly applied by ali Group entities. 

1.5.1 BUSINESS COMBINATION 

Consideration 

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method as at the acquisition date- i.e. when control 
is transferred to the Group. 

The Group measures goodwill at the acquisition date as: 

the fair value of the consideration transferred; plus 
the recognised amount of any non-controlling interests in the acquiree; plus 
if the business combination is achieved in stages, the fair value of the pre-existing equity interest in the 
acquiree; Jess 
the net recognised amount (generally fair value) of the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed. 

When the excess is negative, a bargain purchase gain is recognised immediately in profit or Joss. 

The consideration transferred does not include amounts related to the settlement of pre-existing relationships. Such 
amounts are generally recognised in profit or loss. 

Transactions costs, other than those associated with the issue of debt or equity securities, that the Group incurs in 
connection with a business combination are expensed as incurred. 

Any contingent consideration payable is measured at fair value at the acquisition date. If the contingent 
consideration is classified as equity, then it is not remeasured and settlement is accounted for within equity. 
Otherwise, subsequent changes in the fair value of the contingent consideration are recognised in profit or loss. 

If share-based payment awards (replacement awards) are required to be exchanged for awards held by the 
acquiree's employees (acquiree's awards) and relate to past services, then ali or a portion of the amount of the 
acquirer's replacement awards is included in measuring the consideration transferred in the business combination. 
Consolidated financial statements 
Year ended Oecember 31, 2013 11/57 



Tarkett 
This determination is based on the market-based value of the replacement awards compared with the market-based 
value of the acquiree's awards and the extent to which the replacement awards relate to past and/or future service. 

1.5.2 TRANSACTIONS WITH NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS 

For each business combination , the Group elects to measure any non-controlling interests in the acquiree either: 
at fair value; or 
at their proportionate share of the acquiree's identifiable net assets, which are generally at fair value. 

Changes in the Group's interest in a subsidiary that do not result in a loss of control are accounted for as 
transactions with owners in their capacity as owners. Adjustments to non-controlling interests are based on a 
proportionate amount of the net assets of the subsidiary. No adjustments are made to goodwiU and no gain or loss is 
recognised in profit or loss. 

1.5.3 OPTIONS 

Share put options granted by the Group 

The Group may write a put option or enter into a forward purchase agreement with the non-controlling shareholders 
in an existlng subsidiary on their equity interests in that subsidiary. If the put option or the purchase forward provides 
for settlement in cash or another financial asset by the Group, then a financial liability is recognized for the present 
value of the exercise priee of the option or of the forward priee. The counterpart is a derecognition of corresponding 
non-controlling interests (i.e. the underlying interests are deemed to have been acquired already. The Group 
consolidates the entity as though the non-controlling interests had already been acquired and recognises a liability 
for the present value of the priee payable in the event that the non-controlling interests exercise their option. This 
liability is discounted over the option or forward period and any change in its valuation is accounted for through 
equity. 

1.5.4 FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSLATION 

These financial statements are presented in euro and the functional currency of T arkett SA and its subsidiaries 
located in the Euro zone is Euro. Group entities operate on an autonomous basis and therefore the functional 
currency of entities operating outside the Euro zone is generally their local currency, with the exception of the 
entities located in Eastern Europe which use the Euro as their functional currency. 

Foreign currency transactions 

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated to the respective functional currencies of the Group entities at the 
foreign exchange rate as of the date of the transaction. Foreign exchange rate differences arising on these 
transactions are recognized either in the operating profit for operational transactions or in the financlal result for 
financing transactions. 
Sorne items are covered by hedging transactions; the accounting treatment for those transactions is described in 
note 1.5.19. 
Non-monetary items are translated using the historical exchange rates whilst monetary items are translated using 
the foreign exchange rates ruling at the balance sheet date. 

Financial statements or foreign operations 

On the balance sheet date, assets and liabilities of foreign operations are translated at the closing rate, and incarne 
and expenses are translated at the average exchange rate for the period. 

Foreign currency differences are recognised in other comprehensive incarne (OCI), and presented in the translation 
reserve in equity. When a foreign operation is disposed of, the cumulative amount in the translation reserve related 
to that foreign operation is reclassified to P&L as part of the gain/loss on disposai classified as financial expenses. 
When the Group disposes of only part of its interest in a subsidiary that includes a foreign operation while retaining 
control, the relevant proportion of the cumulative amount is reattributed to non-controlling interests. 

Net investment in foreign operations 

When the settlement of a monetary item receivable or payable to a foreign operation is neither planned nor likely in 
the foreseeable future, foreign exchange gains and !osses arising from such monetary item are considered to form 
part of a net investment in a foreign operation and are recognised in other comprehensive income (OCI) and 
presented in the translation reserve. 
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1.5.5 SEGMENT REPORTING 

IFRS 8 requires an entity to report financial and descriptive information about its reportable segments. Reportable 
segments are operating segments or an aggregation of operating segments that do not meet sorne quantitative 
thresholds. 

The chief operating decision maker of the Group within the meaning of IFRS 8 is the CEO, Michel Giannuzzi 

IFRS 8 defines an operating segment as follows. An operating segment is a component of an entity: 
that engages in business activities from which it may earn revenues and incur expenses, 
whose operating results are reviewed regularly by the entity's chief operating decision maker ta make 
decisions about resources ta be allocated to the segment and assets, its performance, 
for which discrete financial information is available. 

ln addition, IFRS 8 requires the entity ta report selected information by geographical areas. 

The Group's activities have been segmented based on its management structure or divisions and differences in 
products reflecting the Tarkett Group's internai structure. 
Sa far, the Group was reporting into two different segments, Flooring and Sports activities. ln order to provide more 
detailed information in line with its organization, the Group has decided ta split the segment Flooring into three new 
geographical segments: 

Europe, Middle East and Africa (EMEA); 
North America; 
CIS & Other. 

For each reportable business segment, separate disclosure is provided of the related net revenue, gross profit, 
adjusted EBITDA, EBITDA, EBIT and capital expenditures. 

Grouping of Eastern Europe and APAC/LA TAM divisions ln C/S & Others 

The reporting reviewed by the CFO is organized by Division. There are currently five divisions: EMEA, North 
America, Eastern Europe, Asia Pacifie/Latin America and Sports. 
The Eastern Europe and APAC/LATAM divisions have been grouped in the "CIS & Others" segment for the following 
reasons: 

The corresponding markets of these two divisions have similar economie characteristics (growth trends of 
the concerned markets); 
The products sold, the production processes, the typology of the customers and the distribution ways in 
these two zones are similar. 

ln addition, the weight relatively law of the sales and operating profits of the Asia Pacifie/Latin America division (Jess 
than 10% of the net sales and of the adjusted EBITDA reported by the Group in 2012) reinforced the fact that it was 
not necessary to present this division in a specifie segment. 

1.5.6 REVENUE RECOGNITION 

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised in profit or Joss when the significant risks and rewards of ownership 
have been transferred ta the buyer. 

Revenue from services rendered or from construction contracts is recognised in profit or loss in proportion to the 
stage of completion of the transaction at the balance sheet date. The stage of completion is assessed by reference 
to surveys of work performed. An expected Joss on a contract is recognised immediately in profit or Joss. 
Net sales comprise revenue from the sale of goods and services net of rebates, and after elimination of intragroup 
sales. 

1.5. 7 GRANTS 

Grants are recognised when there is reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with the conditions attaching 
ta them and that the grants will be received. 
Grants relating to assets are deducted from the carrying amount of the property plant and equipment. The grants are 
thus recognised as incarne over the lives of the assets by way of a reduced depreciation charge. 

Other grants are recognised as incarne on a systematic basis over the periods necessary to match them with the 
related costs which they are intended to compensate. 
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1.5.8 EXPENSES 

Cost of sales 

Cost of sales comprises the cost of manufactured products, the acquisition cost of purchased goods which have 
been sold, and the supply chain costs for logistic and freight. 

Selling and distribution expenses 

Selling and distribution expanses comprise the expanses of the marketing department and the sales force, as weil 
as advertising expenses, distribution expenses, sales commissions and bad debts. 

Research and development expenses 

Research and development costs are recognised as expanses when incurred, unless the criteria are met for them to 
be capitalised, as per note 1.5.1 O. 

General and administrative expenses 

General and administrative expenses comprise the remuneration and overhead expanses associated with 
management and administrative personnel with the exception of amounts charged to other cost centres. 

Operatlng lease payments 

Payments made under operating leases are recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the 
lease. 
Please refer to note 1.5.11Property, plant and equipment for more precision on lease contract classification. 

Capitallease payments 

Minimum lease payments are apportioned between the finance charge and the reduction of the outstanding liability. 
Please refer to note 1.5.11Property, plant and equipment for more precision on lease contract classification. 

Financlal income and expense 

Net financial items comprise interest payable on borrowings and receivable on financial investments, dividend 
income, foreign exchange gains and tosses on financial assets and liabilities. 

Financial expanse includes bank fees and interest payable on borrowings accounted for at amortised cost using the 
effective interest method. 
Other financial income and expanse include the income and expenses associated with loans and receivables 
accounted for at amortised cost, the gains recognised in respect of investment of cash and cash equivalents, 
impainnent tosses relating to financial assets, dividends. 
Foreign exchange gains and tosses on financial items are presented net, considering that those gains and tosses 
are neutralized by the related impacts of the FX hedging instruments or they are hedged or arise from non-significant 
individual transactions, and by interpretation of lAS 1.35. 

1.5.9 INCOME TAXES 

Incarne tax on the profit or loss for the year comprises current and deferred tax. Incarne tax is recognized in the 
incarne statement except to the extent that it relates to items in equity or in other comprehensive incarne, in which 
case it is recognlzed in these headings. 

Current taxis the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the year, using tax rates enacted or substantially 
enacted at the balance sheet date, and any adjustment to tax payable with respect to previous years. 
lncome tax expense /income are defined part 1.5.22 Deferred taxes. 

Incarne tax is calculated based on the rules applicable in each country where the Group operates. 

The "Cotisation sur la Valeur Ajoutée des Entreprises (C.V.A.E.)" tax contribution enacted in France on the basis of 
the value added as determined based on the statutory accounts of French entities the statutory accounts meets the 
definition of Incarne Tax and are classified on the current incarne tax line. Similar treatment has been adopted for 
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similar ether tax contributions based on a net of products and costs amount even if this amount could be different 
from the accounting net incarne. 

1.5.10 INTANGIBLE ASSETS 

Goodwlll 

For the measurement of goodwill at initial recognition, Tarkett applies IFRS 3 Revised, see 1.5.1, except for 
acquisitions accounted for before December 31, 2009 for which IFRS 3 (2004) was applied. 

Negative goodwill (badwill) is recognised directly in profit or Joss. 

Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units and is not amortised, but instead is tested at least annually for 
impairment on the basis described in note 1.5.15. 

Subsequently, goodwill is measured at cast less accumulated impairment lasses. 

ln respect of equity accounted investees, the carrying amount of goodwill is included in the carrying amount of the 
investment and an impairment loss on such investment is not allocated to any asset, including goodwill that forms 
part of the carrying amount of the equity accounted investee. 

Research and development 

Expenditure on research and development are expensed as incurred (lAS 38.5 and lAS 38.11-38.23) except when 
the criteria for capitalisation of such expenditure are met. 

Development expenditure is capitalized only if the expenditure can be measured reliably, the product or process is 
technically and commercially feasible are probable and the Group intends to and has sufficient resources to 
complete development and to use or sell the assets. Otherwise, it is recognised in profit and Joss as incurred. 
Subsequent to initial recognition, development expenditure is measured at cost Jess accumulated amortisation and 
any accumulated impairment lasses. 

Patents 

Patents obtained by the Group are stated at cast Jess accumulated amortization and impairment lasses. Capitalized 
costs for internally generated patents principally relate to the costs of legal counsel. Patents capitalized are 
amortized on a straight-line basis over the length of the patent. Amortization starts wh en the patent is issued. 

Softwares 

Softwares are stated at cast Jess accumulated amortization and impairment lasses. Sottwares are amortized from 
the date they are available for use on a straight line basis. 

Amortlzation 

Other intangible assets are amortized from the date that they are available for use. The estimated usefullives are as 
follows: 

Patents and trademarks: 
Development costs: 
IT Softwares: 

Length of the patent 
3 to 6213 years 
3 to 5 years 

1.5.11 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost Jess accumulated depreciation and impairment lasses. 

Acquisition cost 

Acquisition cast includes purchase cast or production cast plus the ether costs incurred for bringing the items to their 
operating location and condition. The cast of a self-constructed asset includes the costs of raw materials and direct 
labour, the initially estimated cast of any obligation for dismantling, removing and restoring the site on which the 
asset is located, and an appropriate allocation for directly attributable production overhead. 
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Borrowing costs attributable to the acquisition of items of property, plant and equipment that meets the definition of 
qualifying asset under lAS 23 are capitalized. 

When an item of property, plant and equipment includes material components with different usefullives, each major 
component is accounted for separately. 

Subsequent costs 

Replacements and improvements are capitalized, while general repairs, day to day servicing and maintenance are 
charged to expanses as incurred. 

Depreciation 

Assets are depreciated and charged to profit or loss over their expected usefullives using the straight-line method. 
The estimated usefullives are as follows: 
Buildings 
lndustrial plant and equipment 
Printing cylinders 
Other equipment and supplies 

20-30 years 
6 2/3-1 0 years 
2 years 
3-5 years 

Depreciation methods, usefullives and residual values are reviewed and adjusted if appropriate. 

Finance and operating Jeases 

Leases in terms of which the Group assumes substantially ali of the risks and rewards of ownership are classified as 
finance leases. 
Assets acquired under finance leases are recognised as items of property, plant and equipment at an amount equal 
to the lower of their fair value and the present value of the minimum lease payments at inception of the lease. 
Lease payments are apportioned between the finance charge and the reduction of the outstanding liability. The 
finance charge is allocated to each period during the lease term so as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest 
on the remaining balance of the liability. 

The bases of depreciation and subsequent measurement of the related assets are similar to those applying to other 
tangible fixed assets except in the case where the lease period is shorter than the asset's estimated usefullife and it 
is not reasonably certain that transfer of title will take place at the end of the lease. 
Leases for which a significant portion of the risks and rewards incidentai to ownership of the leased assets remains 
with the lessor are classified as operating leases, with lease payments recognised as an expense on a straight-line 
basis over the lease term. 

Determining wheter an arrangement contains a iease 

At inception of an arrangement, the Group determines wheter the arrangement is or contains a lease. 

At inception or on reassessment of an arrangement that contains a lease, the Group separates payments and other 
consideration required by the arrangement into those for the lease and those for other elements on the basis of their 
relative fair values. If the Group concludes for a finance lease that it is impracticable to separate the payments 
reliably, then an asset and a liabllity are recognised at an amount equal to the fair value of the underlying asset; 
subsequently, the liability is reduced as payments are made and an imputed finance cost on liability is recognised 
using the Group's incrementai borrowing rate. 

1.5.12 NON-CURRENT ASSETS HELD FOR SALE 

Non-current assets, or disposai groups comprising assets and liabilities, are classified as held-for-sale if it is highly 
probable that they will be recovered primarily through sale rather than through continuing use. 

lmmediately before classification as held for sale, the carrying amounts of assets (and groups of related assets and 
liabilities) are revised in accordance with the applicable standards. Then, on initial classification as held for sale, 
non-current assets and disposai groups are recognised at the lower of their carrying a mount and fair value Jess costs 
to sell. 
lmpairment lasses on initial classification as held for sale are included in profit or loss. 

A discontinued operation is a component of a Group's business that represents a separate major line of business or 
geographical area of operations or is a subsidiary acquired exclusively with a view to resale. Classification as a 
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discontinued operation occurs upon disposai or when the operation meets the criteria to be classified as held for 
sale, if earlier. 

1.5.13 ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE 

Accounts receivable are stated at their as a proxy of amortised cost Jess any allowance for doubtful accounts. 

The allowance for doubtful accounts is based on the management's assessment of the recoverability of specifie 
customer accounts and the ageing of the accounts receivable. If there is deterioration in a major customer's 
creditworthiness or if actual defaults are higher than the historical experience, the management's estimates of the 
recoverabllity of amounts due to the Company could be adversely affected. 

Provision for doubtful receivables 

Provisions for doubtful receivables are constituted as follow: 

-Bad debts identified and provisioned at 100%; 
-A statistical provision, based on the age of the outstanding receivables, defined as follows. 

Overdue from 61 to 180 days 25% depreciation of the gross amou nt 

Overdue due from 181 to 270 days 50% depreciation of the gross amount 

Overdue due from 271 to 360 days 75% depreciation of the gross amount 

Overdue due over 360 days 100% depreciation of the gross amou nt 

1.5.14 INVENTORIES 

Inventories are stated on a FIFO basis (first in , first out) at the lower of manufacturing/acquisition costs and net 
realizable value. Manufacturing costs of self-produced inventories comprise ali costs which are directly attributable 
and a systematic allocation of production overhead and depreciation of production facilities based on normal 
operating capacity. Net realisable value is the estimated selling priee in the ordinary course of business, Jess the 
estimated costs of completion and selling expanses. 
Inventories can be classified into raw material, consumables, semi-finished goods & work in progress, and finished 
goods. 

1.5.15 IMPAIRMENT 

a) Non-financial assets 

Annual impairment testing 

Goodwill and other intangible assets with indefinite usefullives are systematically tested for impairment once a year. 
The carrying amounts of the Group's assets, other than financial and deferred tax assets and liabilities, are reviewed 
to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, the asset's recoverable 
amount is estimated. 

The recoverable amount of assets is the greater of their fair value less costs of disposai and value in use. 
Value in use is calculated by discounting estimated future cash flows for each cash-generating unit with the 
exception of borrowing costs and income tax. For this purpose, use is made of 3-year plans (extrapolated by an 
additional year), as weil as of a terminal value for each cash-generating unit. 

The main assumptions used are a pre-tax discount rate of 11% in 2013. This one was equal to 10% in 2012 and 
2011 . The growth rates on sales are between -2% (short term perspectives on the European Union markets) and 
+13% (emerging countries mainly) over a 4-year period (2013 to 2016), depending on the area and the year. After 
the 3-year period, a similar growth than between 2014 and 2015 has been assumed. 
The assessment of the terminal value uses the projection to infinity with a yearly growth rate of 3%, which considers 
that the Group operates on mature and growing business and markets (the same rate of 3% was used in 2012). 

ln assessing value in use, the estimated cash flows associated with cash-generating units recognised for operating 
purposes are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax weighted average cost of capital 0fV A CC) discount 
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rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specifie to each financing 
means. 

For this purpose, goodwill has been allocated over cash-generating units. 

On September 2012, 28th the Group acquired the Tandus Group in the United States of America in order to enlarge 
its development on the US flooring markets as Tandus is specialized in the production and the sale of carpet 
products, tiles and modular. This business meets the definition of a CGU, as the sale of carpet is an independant 
business which generates cash flows and is managed independently from other businesses. 

From January 151
, 2012, the business Sport lndoor has been mainly incorporated into business Residential 

Heterogenous and it is not tested seperatelly. 

Generating units impairment tests 

For the irnpairment test, assets are tested at cash-generating units {"CGU"} to reflect the segment organization of 
the Group and its products, 

The Group has 15 CGU's which correspond to product lines within the Group reporting segments. 

lmpairment process 

The Group holds cash flows from the latest forecasts, over a period of three years, corresponding to the best 
estimate of a full business cycle. These have been established taking into account cyclical variations affecting selling 
priees, volumes and raw material costs. Beyond three years, the Group determines a standard year calculated by 
extending the third year on the assumption of a stable revenue and margin, a need for working capital and 
investments determined on normative renewal based on historical observations. This standard year is then projected 
to infinity according to the method of Gordon Shapiro, applying a growth rate of 3% for ali cash generating units. 

The discounted future cash flows is performed at a rate before tax, reflecting current market assessments of the ti me 
value of money and the risks specifie to the asset, determined on the weighted average cost of applicable capital. 
The discount rate used by the Group in 2013 is a pre-tax rate of 11% and in 2012 a pre-tax rate of 10%. 

The sensitivity analysis was carried out on two assumptions: 
The discount rate (WACC}; 
The perpetuai growth rate. 

Tarkett takes into account the risks and performance specifie to each activity through the following: 
Changes in revenue and operating profit (EBITDA) considered for the next 3 years, by specifie 
segmenUproduct, testing for impairment by CGU, and defined by the Group as part of its strategie plan; 
Working capital (including inventory) defined according to the known history of the different segments and 
based on assumptions change in turnover by CGU; 
Renewal investments, in line with the recent investments by CGU and consideration of potential brake on 
investment especially considering sorne existing CGU maturity investments. 

The single growth rate of 3 % is a normative assumption of growth. lt is likety that growth will be greater on 
incorporated CGU in sorne segments (especially GIS & Other, Sports) but the Group chose to retain this unique rate. 
ln addition, Tarkett perform a sensitivity analysis on the assumption of growth in order to take into account 
reasonably possible changes. 

For each CGU (or groups of CGUs) operational assumptions that were considered key by the Group are as follows: 

Evolution of the markets in which these CGU are involved on the basis of internai estimates, supported if 
possible by external forecasts on the concerned segments 1 products. 
Evolution of the Group in its various markets, 
General hypothesis stability of inflation balance (purchase priee stable, or if changes are considered, total 
compensation by changes in selling priees to balance the impact value) 
Establishment of continuous productivity plans for factories working on these CGU to improve profitability. 
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Change in the discount rate and growth rate 

ln 2013, the combination of an increase in the discount rate by 100 basis points and a decrease in the growth rate of 
1 00 basis points would result in an additional impairment of the CGU Laminate of the segment CIS & Others for an 
amount of€12.1m. 

Changes in 100 basis points in the discount rate and growth rate are reasonably possible variations for the Group. 
Tarkett operates in various countries, with a balance between three main areas (European Union, North America 
and CIS & Others). The economie developments in these areas can mitigate them, as it has also been demonstrated 
in the past. 

lmpalrment tosses 

An impairment Joss is recognised whenever the carrying amount of a cash-generating unit exceeds its recoverable 
amount. lmpairment losses are recognised in profit or loss. 
lmpairment lasses recognised in respect of cash-generating units are allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of 
any goodwill allocated to the cash-generating unit and then, to reduce the carrying amount of the other assets in the 
unit on a prorata basis. 

An impairrnent Joss in respect of goodwill is not reversed. ln respect of other assets, an impairment Joss is reversed 
if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount. 

b) Non-derivative financial assets 

A financial asset not carried at fair value through profit or Joss is assessed at each reporting date to determine 
whether there is objective evidence that it is impaired. For an investment in an equity security, a significant or 
prolonged decline on its fair value below its costs is indicative of impairrnent. 

An impairment Joss in respect of a financial asset measured at amortised cost is calculated as the difference 
between its carrying amount and the present value of the estimated future cash flows discounted at the asset's 
original effective interest rate. 

lmpairment Joss on available for sale financial assets is measured as the difference between its carrying amount and 
its fair value, Jess any impairment Joss previously recognised and recognised by reclassifying the !osses 
accumulated in the fair value reserve in equity to profit or Joss. 

1.5.16 SHARE CAPITAL 

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incrementai costs directly attributable to the issue of ordinary shares and 
share options are recognized as a deduction from equity, net of any tax affects. When share capital recognized as 
equity is repurchased, the amount of consideration paid, which includes directly attributable costs, is net of any tax 
affects, and is recognized as a deduction from equity classified as own shares. When own shares are sold or 
reissued subsequently, the amount received is recognized as an increase in equity, and the resulting surplus or 
deficit on the transaction is transferred to/from retained earnings. 

1.5.17 SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS 

The grant-date fair value of equity-settled share-based payment awards granted to employees is generally 
recognised as an expanse, with a corresponding increase in equity, over the vesting period of the shares awarded. 
The amount recognised as an expense is adjusted to reflect the number of shares awarded for which the related 
service and non-market performance conditions are expected to be met, such that amount ultimately recognised is 
based on the number of shares awarded that meet the related service and non-market performance conditions at the 
vesting date. For share-based payment awards with non-vesting conditions, the grant-date fair value of the share 
based payment would be measured to reflect such conditions and there is no true-up for differences between 
expected and actual outcomes. 

The fair value of the amount payable to employees in respect of SARs, which are settled in cash is recognised as an 
expanse with a corresponding increase in liabilities, over the period during which the employees become 
unconditionally entitled to payment. The liability is remeasured at each reporting date and at settlement date based 
on the fair value of the SARs. Any changes in the liability are recognised in profit or Joss. 
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Share-based payment programs include bath programs allowing Group employees to acquire shares of the 
Company under specifie conditions and programs awarding free shares to Group employees. The current existing 
programs are described in the note 23 of the Group financial statements. 

1.5.18 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 

Within the Tarkett Group, various systems for providing for retirement benefits depending on the legal, economie and 
tax environment of each country exist. ln accordance with the laws and uses applied in each country, Tarkett SA 
participates in pension, welfare, health and retirement benefit plans whose benefits are dependent on various factors 
such as length of service, salary and the contributions paid to institutions. 

Defined contribution plans 

Defined contribution plans are post-employment benefit plans under which the Group pays fixed contributions and 
will have no legal or constructive obligation to pay further contributions if the fund does not hold sufficient assets to 
pay ali employee benefits relating to employee service in the current and prior periods. 

These contributions, based on services rendered by employees, are recognised as an expense in profit or loss as 
incurred. 

Defined beneflt plans 

Defined benefit plans are post-employment benefit plans under which the Group assumes the obligation of providing 
employees with future benefits and thus also assumes the related actuariat and investment risks. The defined benefit 
liability is calculated using the projected unit credit method and is discounted to its present value from which the 
amount of past service cost for the period may also be deduced. 
The detailed actuariat calculation requires the use of actuariat hypotheses for demographie variables (mortality, 
employee turnover) and economie variables (future increases in salaries and medical costs, discount rate). 
When defined benefit plans are totally or partially funded by contributions paid to a separate fund or insurance 
company, those entities' assets are measured at their fair value and their amount is deducted from the obligation to 
define net liability disclosed in the Group's balance sheet. Remeasurement of the net defined benefit liability, which 
comprise actuariat gains and lasses, the return on plan assets (excluding interest) and the effect of the asset ceiling 
(if any, excluding interest) are recognized immediately in OCI. 
The Group determines the net interest expense (incarne) on the net defined benefit obligation at the beginning of the 
annual period to the then-net defined benefit liability (asset), taking into account any changes in the net defined 
benefit liability (asset) during the period as a result of contributions and benefit payments. Net interest expanse and 
other expenses related to defined benefit plans are recognized in profit or loss." 

The Group's obligation in respect of such arrangements is calculated by independant actuaries, according to lAS 19. 

Actuarlal gains and /osses 

Actuariat gains and tosses on defined benefit liabilities and plan assets comprise both the effects of changes in 
actuariat assumptions and the effects of differences between the previous actuariat assumptions and what has 
actually occurred. 
Actuariat gains and lasses for retirement benefit plans are immediately recognised in other comprehensive income. 

Past service cost 

When changes occur to a defined benefit plan, past service cost for the changed benefit liability is recognised as an 
expense immediately in profit and loss. 

Curtailment and liquidation 

The effects of any liquidation of plans or reduction of benefits are recognised in profit or loss at the date of liquidation 
or reduction. 

1.5.19 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 

The Group has applied lFRS 7 and IFRS 13 which define the disclosures to be made in respect of financial assets 
and liabilities. 
Financial transactions are recorded based on the effective date of payment. 
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Non-derivative financial assets 

Financial assets are initially recognised at their fair value plus any applicable transaction costs except for financial 
assets at fair value through profit or Joss for which transactions costs are recognised in profit or Joss as incurred. 

At the date of acquisition the Group classiftes its financial assets in one of the four categories provided for by lAS 39. 
The classification determines the basis of measurement of each financial asset at the subsequent balance sheet 
dates, whether at amortised cost or at fair value. 

Held-to-maturity investments are exclusively securities with fixed or determinable payments (other than items 
defined as loans and receivables) acqulred with the intention of holding them to maturity. They are accounted for at 
amortised cost uslng the effective interest method. The net income recognised in respect of such assets comprises 
the aggregate of interest receivable and any impairment !osses. 

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in 
an active mar1<et. Subsequent to initial recognition, they are accounted for at amortised cost, using the effective 
interest method, Jess any impairment !osses reflecting the risk of non-recovery. The category includes trade and 
other loans and receivables. The net income recognised in respect of such assets comprises the aggregate of 
interest receivable and any impairment losses. 

Subsequent to initial recognition, available for sale financial assets are measured at fair value, and changes therain, 
other than impairment losses (see 1.5.15) are recognised in other comprehensive income. 
The category mainly comprises non-consolidated long-term investments which are measured in the balance sheet at 
their acquisition cost assuming the absence of an active market for the securities held. The net income recognised 
in respect of such assets comprises the aggregate of dividends receivable, any impairment losses and the gains or 
losses arising on disposai. 
Financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include both items held for trading, i.e. that the 
Group has from the outset the intention to sell in the near future (including derivatives not qualified as hedging 
instruments), and assets specifically designated as at fair value through profit or Joss. These assets are adjusted to 
their fair value at each balance sheet date and the resulting gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss. 

This category notably includes cash and cash equivalents. The net income recognised in respect of such assets 
comprises the aggregate of interest receivable, changes in fair value and the gains or losses arising on disposai. 
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on hand, term deposits and other monetary investments with 
initial maturities not exceeding three months and subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value. 
For purposes of cash flows statement presentation, cash and cash equivalents are defined on the same basis as in 
the balance sheet. 

Non-derivative financialliabilities 

Financialliabilities comprise financial debt and trade and other operating payables. 
With the exception of items classified as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans payable and 
other financial liabilities are initially recognised at their fair value Jess any applicable transaction costs. They are 
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method. 

Given their short maturities, trade and other operating payables are measured at historical cost since use of the 
amortised cost basis would produce very similar results. 

Derivative instruments 

The Group uses derivative financial instruments to hedge its exposure to the foreign currency risk and interest rate 
risk associated with its purchases and sales denominated in foreign currencies and with its financing and investment 
transactions. 
The derivatives employed comprise in particular interest rate swaps and options, other forward contracts and foreign 
currency options. 

ln accordance with its policy in respect of financial instruments, the Group neither uses nor issues derivative 
financial instruments for trading purposes, but derivatives which do not meet the criteria qualifying them for hedge 
accounting are nevertheless accounted for similarly to speculative instruments. 
Derivatives are recognised in the balance sheet at their fair value (whether positive or negative) with changes in fair 
value immediately recognised in profit or loss. 
Derivative instruments which qualify for hedge accounting and meet the applicable effectiveness tests are classified 
either as fair value hedges (when their purpose is to hedge an existing asset or liability's exposure to the risk of 
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changes in its fair value) or cash flow hedges (when their purpose is to hedge the exposure to changes in the cash 
flows associated with highly probable future transactions). 
Changes in the fair value of fair value hedges of exposure to foreign currency and interest rate risk are recognised 
as part of financial income or expense. The hedged assets and liabilities are also adjusted to their fair value and the 
changes in fair value attributable to the hedged risk(s) are equally recognised as part of financial income or expanse. 
Changes in the fair value of cash flow hedges of exposure to foreign currency and interest rate risk are recognised 
within other comprehensive income with the exception of any ineffective portion of changes in fair value which is 
recognised in financial income or expanse. 

The gains and tosses initially recognised directly in other comprehensive incarne are transferred to profit or loss 
during the period in which the hedged item itself produces an impact on profit or Joss. 
If a derivative instrument ceases to meet the criteria for hedge accounting, the cumulative amount recognised in 
other comprehensive income at that date remains in other comprehensive in come until the date of occurrence of the 
transaction initially hedged, but if the transaction is no longer expected to occur then the amount is immediately 
transferred in full to profit or loss. 
Derivative instruments which cease to meet the criteria for hedge accounting are reclassified as held for trading and 
changes in their fair value are recognised as part of financial income or expense. 
Finally, the effective portion of the foreign exchange gain or Joss associated with hedges of net investments in 
foreign operations is recognised directly in other comprehensive income; the ineffective portion is recognised 
immediately in profit or Joss. 

Fair value method 

When measuring the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group uses market observable date as far as possible. 
Fair values are categorised into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used in the valuation 
techniques as follows: 

revel 1: quoted priees (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities; 
levet 2: inputs other than quoted priees included in levet 1 that are observable for the asset or the liability, 
either directly (i.e. as priees) or indirectly (i.e. derived from priees); 
level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs)". 
However, if the fair value of an equity instrument cannat be reasonably estimated, it is measured at cast. 

The fair value of ali the Group's financial assets and liabilities is determined as at the balance sheet date either for 
inclusion in the balance sheet or for disclosure in the notes to the consolidated financial statements. 

The fair value of interest rate swaps and of interest rate and foreign currency options is the estimated amount that 
the Group would expect to receive or have ta pay in arder to cancel each derivative instrument at the balance sheet 
date, taking into account the current lever of interest rates and the credit risk associated with the swaps' 
counterparties. The fair value of forward exchange contracts is their market value at the balance sheet date, i.e. the 
present value of their quoted forward priees. 

The derivative financial instruments (swaps, caps, floors etc.) employed by Tarkett are entered into by private 
arrangement and are thus not subject to quoted priees. They are therefore measured using the valuation models 
commonly employed by operators in the market and in particular: 

lnterest rate swaps are measured on the basis of the present value of the contractual future cash flows; 
Options are measured using Black and Scholes type valuation models based on published market quotations 
and/or on quotations provided by third party financial institutions; 
Other foreign currency and interest rate derivative instruments are measured on the basis of the present value 
of the associated interest rate differentiais. 

Derivative instruments are entered into exclusively with first class banks or other financial institutions, and with the 
sole purpose of providing security for the Group's current operations and for the financing thereof. 
The fair value of non-quoted borrowings is calculated on the basis of the present value of the contractual cash flows 
discounted at the market rate of interest, including the applicable risk premium. 
ln the case of receivables and payables with maturities of Jess than a year and certain floating rate receivables and 
payables, historical cost is considered as a reasonable approximation of their fair value given the limited credit 
periods granted and received within the Group. 

1.5.20 PROVISIONS 

Provisions and non-current liabilities are comprised of liabilities for which the amount or the timing are uncertain. 
They arise from environmental risks, legal and tax risks, litigation and other risks. 
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A provision is recognised when the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of a past event, 
and it is probable that an outflow of economie benefits will be required to settle the obligation. If the effect is material, 
provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows. 

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present 
obligation at the balance sheet date. Provisions are reversed when they are no longer required. 
A provision for warranties is recognised when the underlying products are sold. The provision is based on historical 
warranty data and a weighting of ali possible outcomes against their associated probabilities. 
A provision for restructuring is recognised when the Group has approved a detailed and formai restructuring plan, 
and the restructuring either has commenced or has been announced. Future operating tosses are not provided for. 

1.5.21 TRADE PAYABLES 

Trade payables are stated at their repayment amounts. Payables of uncertain timing or amount are shown as 
accrued charges. 

1.5.22 DEFERRED TAXES 

Deferred taxis calculated using the balance sheet liability method, providing for temporary differences between the 
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation 
purposes. The amount of deferred tax provided is based on the expected manner of realisation or settlement of the 
carrying amount of assets and liabilities, using tax rates enacted or substantially enacted at the balance sheet date. 

The following temporary differences are not provided for: 
Goodwill not deductible for tax purposes; 
The initial recognition of assets or liablllties, other than in the context of transactions involving business 
combinations, that affect neither accounting nor taxable profit; 
Differences relating to investments in subsidiaries to the extent that they will probably not reverse in the 
foreseeable future. 

A deferred income tax asset is recognized only to the extent that there will be future taxable profits over the next five 
years against which this asset can be utilized. Deferred income tax assets are reduced to the extent that it is no 
longer llkely that a sufficient taxable benefit will support the asset recovery. 

1.5.23 NETDEBT 

The Net debt is defined netting up the interest bearing loans, borrowings and bank overdraft, minus the cash and 
cash equivalents. 
lnterest-bearing loans and borrowings refer to any obligation for the repayment of funds received or raised which are 
subject to repayment terms and interest charges. They also include liabilities on finance lease. 

1.5.24 RECONCILIATION OF EARL Y ADOPTION OF IFRS 11 AND RECLASSIFICATIONS 

Early adoption of standards or interpretations 

The Group has early adopted the standard IFRS 11 "Joint arrangements" and IFRS 12 "Disclosure of interest in 
other entities". Under IFRS 11, interests in joint arrangements are classified as either joint operations (if the Group 
has rights to the assets, and obligations for the liabilities relating to the arrangement) or joint ventures (if the Group 
has rights only to the net assets of an arrangement). The Group has analyzed its only joint venture and concludes to 
qualify it as a joint operation. This change implies the restatement of comparative period of reporting. Relative 
impacts are described below. This change only concerns Laminate Park GmbH & Co KG, jointly controlled with the 
group Sonae in Germany. Relative impacts are described below. 

2011 has not been restated since the impact in the Consolidated Financial Statement is not significant and 
concerned the same aggregates than 2012. 

The Group also applied IFRS 10, 12, lAS 27R and lAS 28R. 

Rec/asslflcations 

The reclassifications in the balance sheet and the Cash Flow are done in arder to reconcile the different categories 
of working capital between these two statements. 
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Summary of impacts arising from changes in accounting standards and other rec/assifications in the 
balance sheet as at December 31, 2012 

AS SETS 

Goodwill 

Intangible assets 

Property, plant and equipment 

Financial assets 

Deferred tax assets 

Non-eurre nt assets 

Inventories 

Trade receivables 

Other receivables 

Cash and cash equivalents 

Current assets 

TOTAL ASSETS 

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 

Share capital 

Share premium and reserves 

Retained eamings 

Net result for the period 

Equity attributable to owners of the Company 

Non-controllfng interests 

Total equlty 

lnterest-bearing loans and borrowings 

Other financialliabilities 

Oeferred tax llabilities 

Employee benefils 

Pro\'isions and other non-currentliabilities 

Non-current llabilitles 

Trade payables 

Other liabilitles 

lnterest-bearing loans and borrowings 

Other financlalliabilities 

Pro\1sions and other current liabilities 

Current liabillties 

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 
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Dec 2012 Dec 2012 
Note published IFRS 11 8doptlon Reclassificatlons restated 

(8) 449.1 449.1 

(9) 98.5 (0.1) 98.4 

(9) 429.4 (0.6) 428.7 

(9) 35.2 (5.9) 29.3 

(19) 96.7 (0.6) 96.2 

1,108.8 (7.1) 1,101.7 

(10) 339.1 (5.7) 333.3 

(11) 283.1 (1.8) 6.3 287.6 

(12) 66.7 (0.5) (6.3) 59.9 

(15) 81 .4 (0.3) 81.1 

770.4 (8.3) 762.0 

1,879.2 (15.5) 1,863.7 

(13) 316.1 316.1 

138.8 138.8 

144.9 0.0 145.0 

83.7 83.7 

683.6 0.0 683.6 

10.1 10.1 

693.7 (0.0) 693.7 

(15) 342.8 (7.1) 335.7 

(16) 6.8 6.8 

(19) 5.4 5.4 

(21) 142.2 142.2 

(20) 38.1 38.1 

535.2 (7.1) 528.1 

(17) 221 .7 (3.4) 26.0 244.3 

(18) 189.9 (1 .3) (26.0) 162.6 

(15) 190.8 (3.6) 187.2 

(16) 11.6 11 .6 

(20) 36.2 36.2 

650.3 (8.4) 641.9 

1,879.2 (15.5) 1,863.7 
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Summary of impacts arising from changes in accountlng standards and other reclassifications ln the P&L in 
2012 

Continuing operations 

Net revenue 

Cost of sales 

Gross profit 

Other operating income 
Selling and distribution expenses 

Research and dewlopment expanses 
General and administratlw expanses 

Olher expenses 

Results from opera ting activities 

Financial income 

Financial expanses 

Net finance costs 

Share of profit of equity accounted inwstees (net of income tax) 

Profit before lncome tax 

lncome tax expanses 

Profit from continuing operations 

Discontinued operations 

Profit 1 (loss) from dlscontinued operations (net of lncome tax) 

Profitfor the perlod 

Attrlbutable to: 
Owners of the Company 

Non~ontrolling interests 

Profit for the perlod 

Earnlngs per share 
Basic earnings per share (in EUR) 
Diluted eamings per share (in EUR) 

Eamings per share - Contlnuing operations 
Basic eamings par share (in EUR) 
Diluted eamings per share (in EUR) 

Note 

(5) 

(5) 
(9) 

(6) 

(7) 

(8) 
(8) 

(8) 
(8) 

Dec2012 
published 

2,318.5 

(1,792.2) 

526.2 

6.4 
(214.3) 

(19.8) 
(136.7) 

(10.5) 

151.3 

2.2 
(27.0) 

(24.7) 

126.6 

(41.4) 

85.2 

85.2 

83.6 

1.6 

85.2 

1.35 
1.34 

1.35 
1.34 

IFRS 11 adoption 

(27.0) 

26.4 

(0.5) 

1.2 

0.8 

0.5 

0.2 

2.1 

0.2 

0.5 

0.7 

(1.9) 

0.9 

(0.9) 

(0.0) 

Dec 2012 
restated 

2,291.5 

(1,765.8) 

525.7 

7.6 

(213.5) 

(19.8) 
(136.2) 

(10.3) 

153.5 

2.5 
(26.5) 

(24.0) 

(1.9) 

127.5 

(42.3) 

85.2 

85.2 

83.6 
1.6 

85.2 

1.35 
1.34 

1.35 
1.34 

Summary of impacts arising from changes in accountlng standards and other reclassifications ln the OC/ in 
2012 

The change in consolidated method of Laminate Park has no impact on the Other Comprehensive lncome. 
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Summary of impacts arising from changes in accounting standards and other rec/asslfications in the cash 
flow in 2012 

Cash flows from opera ting activities 

Net profit before tax 
Adjustments for: 

Depreciation and amortization 
(Gain) loss on sale of fixed assets 
Net finance costs 
Change in provisions and other non-cash items 
Share of profit of equity accounted investees, net of tax 

Operatlng cash flow before working capital changes 

lncrease (-) 1 Decrease (+)in trade receivables 
lncrease (-) 1 Decrease (+)in other receivables 
lncrease (-) 1 Decrease (+)in inventories 
lncrease (+) 1 Decrease (-)in trade payables 
lncrease (+) 1 Decrease (-)in other payables 
Effect of changes ln working capital 

Cash generated from operations 

lnterest paid 
lncome taxes paid 
Other items 
Other operating Items 

Net cash from opera ting actlvities 

Cash flows from investing activities 

Acquisition of subs idiaries net of cash acquired 
Acquisition of property, plant and equipment 
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 

Net cash used in lnvestlng actlvlties 

Cash flows from financing activltles 

Proceeds from loans and borrowings 
Repayment of loans and borrowings 
Payment of finance lease liabilities 

Net cash from 1 (used ln) financing activitles 

Net increase 1 (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of period 
Effect of exchange rate fluctuations on cash held 

Cash and cash equivalents, end of period 
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(2) 
(9) 
(9) 

Dac 2012 Dec 2012 
published IFRS 11 adoption Reclasslfications restated 

126.6 

86.8 

24.8 
7.6 

247.9 

38.1 
(4.9) 
(21.2) 
28.6 
7.8 
48.4 

296.2 

(22.6) 
(45.3) 
0.7 

(67.2) 

229.0 

(259.2) 
(85.0) 

0.7 

(343.5) 

213.6 
(70.3) 
(0.8) 

142.7 

28.1 

53.9 
(0.6) 

81 .4 

0.6 

(0.7) 

1.9 

2.1 

(0.6) 
(0.2) 
1.1 

(1 .4) 

(0.1) 
(1.1) 

1.0 

0.7 

0.1 
0.8 

1.7 

0.2 

0.2 

(2.0) 

(2.0) 

(0.1) 

(0.2) 

(0.3) 

127.5 

88.8 

24.0 
7.6 
1.9 

250.0 

(9.1) 28.3 
(1 .5) (6.6) 

(20.0) 
1.5 28.7 
9.1 16.9 

47.2 

297.2 

(21 .9) 
(45.3) 

0.8 
(66.5) 

230.7 

(259.2) 
(84.8) 
0.7 

(343.3) 

211.8 
(70.3) 
(0.8) 

140.6 

28.0 

53.7 
(0.6) 

81.1 
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NOTE 2- CONSOLIDATION SCOPE 

The Tarkett Group's consolidation scope is as follows. Note 29 provides a list of main consolidated entities. 

Number of companles Dec 31, 2012 IFRS 11 Dec 31, 2012 
publlahed adoption relltated Creation Mergers Dec 31, 2013 

Fully consolidated companies 
Equity-accounted companies 
Jointly controlled companies subject to proport1onate consolidation 

TOTAL 

2.1 SCOPE VARIATION 

Merger 

72 

73 

1 
(1) 

72 
1 

73 

(3) 70 

(3) 71 

ln January 2013, "Les Installations Sportives Defargo lnc." merged with and into "Tarkett lnc," the Canadian parent 
entity. 
ln July 2013, "Tandus Group lnc." merged with and into ''Tandus Flooring lnc~. 
ln July 2013, "Tarkett Texas Holding lnc." merged with and into "Texas Tile Manufacturing LLC". 

ln November 2013, SIF and Partholdi merged with and into Tarkett. 

Creation 

ln December 2013, Tarkett Services has been created. 

2.2 PURCHASE ACCOUNTING OF TANOUS ACQUISITION 

On September 28, 2012, Tarkett has acquired the US group Tandus, speciallzed in the production and the sale of 
carpet products in order to enlarge its development on the US flooring markets. 

Tandus group comprises 10 legal entities, including 6 plants, mainly based in North America and sales entities 
located in North America and in Asia. Ali these companies are tully consolidated and held at 1 00% since their 
acquisition by Tarkett. 

The initial consideration pa id for Tan dus group amounts to €27 4.1 m and includes the reimbursement of Tandus debt 
of €129.8m. An additional amount has been paid in 2013 which was defined in the acquisition contract and 
corresponds to tax refunds for an amount of €(3.5}m, this complementary amount is presented in the line 
«Acquisition of subsidiaries net of cash acquired »of the 2013 cash flow statement. 

Acquisition costs have been reported in « General and administrative expanses » for an amount of €3.2m. 

The acquisition impact in the consolidated cash flow statement was presented, as of December 31, 2012, in the li ne 
«Acquisition of subsidiaries net of cash acquired »for an amount of €(258.3)m. 

Acquisition of Tandus group 
Tandus loan reimbursement 
Cash acquired, less stock-options paid 
Acquisition of subsidiaries, net of cash acquired 

(144.2) 
(129.8) 

15.8 
(258.3) 

As of December 31 , 2012 this acquisition has been recorded in accordance with IFRS3-r on provisional basis. The 
resulting goodwill at the end of 2012 was equal to €170.1m. 

On 2013, Tarkett has finalized identification work and evaluation of acquired assets and liabilities, these results in a 
decrease in goodwill. At the end of December 2013, it amounts to €152.3m. This goodwill is not tax deductible. 

Consolidated financial statements 
Year ended December 31, 2013 27/57 



Tarkett 
Initial goodwill at December 31, 2012 

Additionnai consideration 

Fair value of assets 

Intangible assets 

Deferred tax assets 

Inventories (lm pairment) 

Oeferred tax liabilities 

Other liabilities 

Exchange variations 

Final goodwlll 

This goodwill corresponds mainly to: 
Specifie technology and know-how, 

170.7 

3.5 
(14.9) 
(16.1) 

(0.5) 

2.0 

1.6 

(1.8) 

(7.0) 

152.3 

Expected sales synergies in North America ("cross selllng af Tandus and tarkett products"), added to 
potential development of Tandus outside North America, 
Market shares already acquired by the Tandus group. 

Purchase priee adjustments are detailed below: 

Fair value of 
Accountlng acqulred 

value PPA assetsand 
before PPA adjustments FX change llabllltles 

Goodwill 71.7 (71 .7) 
Intangible assets 1.3 16.1 (0.7) 16.8 
Tangible assets 37.5 8.0 (2.8) 42.7 
Other flnanclal assets 0.4 (0.0) 0.3 
Deferred tax assets 6 .7 0.8 (0.5) 7.0 
lnwntories 38.0 0.9 (2.5) 36.4 
Trade receivables 29.9 (1 .9) 28.0 
Other operating assets 5.1 (0.3) 4.8 
Cash and cash equivalents 21 .0 (1.3) 19.7 
Loans and borrowings (129.9) (0.7) 8.2 (122 4) 
Deferred tax liabilitles (24.3) 12.0 0.8 (11 .6) 
Other non COLrnnl liabilltles (7.9) 0.5 (7.4) 
Trade payables (10.0) 0.6 (9.4) 
Other operating liabllities (21.5) 1.8 1.3 (18.4) 
Net assets at fair value (B) 17.7 (32.7) 1.3 (13.7) 

Consideration pald (A) 144.2 3.5 (9.1~ 138.6 

Consolldated goodwlll (A) • (B) 126.5 36.2 (10.4) 152.3 

Main fair value adjustments concern: 
Cancellation of historical goodwill reported in Tandus accounts for €71.7m, 
Reevaluation of tangible assets, as machinery and equipments based on expert analysis for €8.0m, 
Identification of intangible assets for €16.1 m relative to: 
./ patents, representative of technology brought by Tandus, amortized on 6 years, 
./ and several Tandus trademarks: Tandus name (amortized on 10 years), Sero trademark (amortized on 

7 years), and Powerbond and Ethos trademarks (indefinite usefullife), 
Fair value adjustment on inventories taking into account ageing and slow moving risks for €0.8m. 

Update of deferred tax assets and liabilities is based on adjustments mentioned above. 

Impact of Tandus acquisition on P&L: 

Between the 281
h of September 2012 and the 31 51 of Oecember 2012, Tandus has contributed to the Group 

performance for €66.1 rn of net sales and €5.4m of net result. 

If acquisition has ta ken place on 1 st of January 2012, the net sales and the net result of the Group would have 
increased respectively for €205. 7m and €23.6m. 

Consolidated financial statements 
Year ended December 31 , 2013 28157 



Tarkett 
2.3 RECLASSIFICATION OF A JOINTL Y CONTROUED ENTITY INTO JOINT VENTURE 

Laminate Park GmbH & Co KG jointly held with Sonae group in Germany was the only remaining jointly controlled 
entity. Impacts of the reclassification of the jointly controlled entity as per lAS 31 into joint venture as per IFRS 11 
are detailed in section 1.5.24 Early adoption of standards or interpretations. 

Laminate Park GmbH & Co KG products laminate and board at the destination of EMEA market. 

The impact of the jointly controlled entities on Tarkett consolidated statements of financial position and income is the 
following (the following balance sheet and P&L figures are consolidated at 50%): 

Balance sheet 

%of ownership interest 

AS SETS 
Intangible assets 
Property, plant and equipment 
Deferred tax assets 
Non-current assets 
ln~ntories 

Trade receivables 
Other receivables 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Current assets 
TOTAL ASSETS 

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 
Retained eamings 
Net result for the period 
Equlty attrlbutable to owners of the Company 
Non-controlling interests 
Total equlty 

lnterest-bearing loans and borrowings 
Non-current liabilities 
Trade payables 
Other liabilities 
lnterest-bearing loans and borrowings 
Other financial liabilities 
Current llabilities 
TOTAL LIABILITIES 

Consolidated financial statements 
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Dec 31, 2013 Dec 31, 2012 

50% 50% 

0.1 0.1 
0.7 0.6 
0.3 0.6 
1.2 1.2 
5.5 5.7 
2.2 2.9 
0.2 0 .5 
0.2 0.3 
8.0 9.5 
9.2 10.7 

(13.0) (11 .0) 
1.6 (1.9) 

(11.3) (13.0) 

(11.3) (13.0) 

14.2 14.2 
14.2 14.2 
2.6 5.2 
0.5 0.7 
3.1 3.6 
0.1 
6.3 9.5 
9.2 10.7 
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Profit and Loss 

Dec 31, 2013 Dec 31,2012 

Net revenue 22.7 27.0 

Cast of sales (21.4) (26.4) 
Gross profit 1.4 0.5 

Other operating incarne 1.1 0.1 
Selling and distribution expanses (0.2) (0.8) 
Research and dewlaprnent expanses (0.1) 
General and adrninistratiw expenses (0.5) (0.5) 
Other aperating ex penses (2.2) (1.4) 
Results from opera ting activities (0.4) (2.1) 

Financial incarne 3.7 0.7 
Financial expanses (1.4) (1.4) 
Net finance costs 2.3 (0.7) 

Share of profit of equity accounted inwstees (net of incarne tax) 
Profit before income tax 1.9 (2.8) 

Incarne tax expanses (0.3) 0.9 
Profit from continuing operations 1.6 (1.9) 

NOTE 3 - ADJUSTED EBITDA 

The adjusted EBITDA is a key indicator for the Group to measure its operating and recurring performance. 

tt is defined considering the operating incarne before depreciation and amortization and removing revenues and 
expanses that are considered as adjustments in nature, i.e.: 

Restructuring costs to improve the future profltability of the Group, 
Gains or lasses on significant asset disposais, 
lmpairment and reversai of impairment based on Group impairment test only, 
Costs related to business combination and legal reorganization, including legal fees, transactions costs and 
consulting fees, 
Specifically in 2013, costs related to IPO, 
Expanses related to share-based payments due to their non-cash nature. 
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The Group's adjusted EBITDA breaks down as follows: 

Net sales 

Cost of sales 
Gross profit 

Other operating income 
Selling and distribution expanses 
Research and de-..elopment expenses 
General and administratiw expenses 
Other expenses 
Result from opera ting activitles 

Depreciation and amortization 
EBITDA 
(**) lncluded IPO costs 

Net sales 

Cost of sales 
Gross profit 

Other operating income 
Selling and distribution expenses 
Research and de-..elopment expenses 
General and administratiw expenses 
Other expenses 
Result from operating activities 

Depreciation and amortization 
EBITDA 

Consolidated financial statements 
Year ended December 31 , 2013 

Oec31, 2013 

2,516.4 

(1,892.8) 
623.7 

8.9 
(248.8) 
(25.8) 

{162.3) 
(14.8) 
180.9 

105.5 
286.4 

Dec 31,2012 
restated* 

2,291 .5 

(1 ,765.8) 
525.7 

7.6 
(213.5) 
(19.8) 
(136.2) 
(10.3) 
153.4 

88.8 
242.2 

lq~airment & 
Restructuring Customer's list 

amortization 

(1.8) (4.8) 
(1 .8) (4.8) 

(2.3) 

(1 .1) (1 .3) 

(5.3) (6.1) 

6.4 
(5.3) 0.2 

1 mpalrment & 

Restruc:turing Customer's list 
amortlzation 

(5.0) 
~5.0) 

(0.8) 

(0.9) (1 .7) 

(6.6) (1.7) 

1.7 
(6.6) 

Of whieh adjustments 

Business Share·based 
c:o.minations payments 

Others ( .. ) 
Dec 31, 2013 

Adjusted 

2,516.4 

(0.6) (1 ,885.5) 
~0.6) 631.0 

0.1 8.8 
(0.8) (245.8) 

(25.8) 
(0.5) (6.1) (8.8) (144.5) 

(1 .9) (12.9) 
(0.5) (6.1) ~11 .9) 210.9 

99.1 
(0.5) (6.1) (11.9) 310.0 

Of whlch adjustments 

Business Share-based Oec 31,2012 Others 
combinations payments Adjusted 

restated* 

2,291 .5 

(3.8) (1 ,757.0) 
(3.8) 534.5 

(0.5) 1.5 6.6 
(212.7) 
(19.8) 

(3.3) (2.5) (2.8) (125.0) 
(1 .9) (8.4) 

(7.6) (2.5) (3.2) 175.2 

87.1 
(7.6) (2.5) (3.2) 262.2 
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NOTE 4- SEGMENT INFORMATION 

Flooring 

North crs & Sports Central Group 

Dec 31, 2013 EMEA America Others 
Net revenue 669.6 673.6 887.5 285.8 2,516.4 

Activlty (*) 746.5 674.0 900.7 288.1 

Gross profit 181.7 180.7 215.6 45.7 623.7 
% of net sales 27.1% 26.8% 24.3% 16.0% 24.8% 

Adjusted EBrTDA 71.3 74.0 190.1 15.0 (40.3) 310.0 
% of net sales 10.6% 11.0% 21 .4% 5.2% 12.3% 

EBrTDA 69.4 68.6 188.9 14.6 (55.1) 286.4 
% of net sales 10.4% 10.2% 21.3% 5.1% 11.4% 

EBrT 34.6 38.9 143.2 (1.2) (34. 7) 180.9 
% of net sales 5.2% 5.8% 16.1% (0.4)% 7.2% 

Capital expenditures 19.2 20.9 37.3 4.4 5.9 87.8 
(*) lncluding Inter-segment revenue 

Floorlng 

Dec 31, 2012 North crs & Sports Central Group 

restated * EMEA America Others 
Net revenue 679.0 477.4 874.1 260.9 2,291.5 

Actlvity (*) 756.9 477.5 882.9 263.0 

Gross profit 181.1 95.9 206.5 42.1 525.7 
% of net sales 26.7% 20.1% 23.6% 16.1% 22.9% 

Adjusted EBITDA 76.3 30.1 180.0 10.1 (34.2) 262.2 
% of net sales 11.2% 6.3% 20.6% 3.9% 11.4% 

--EBITDA 70.5 23.8 177.8 9.2 (39.0) 242.2 
% of net sales 10.4% 5.0% 20.3% 3.5% 10.6% 

EBIT 41.5 4.8 130.6 (4.6) (18.9) 153.4 
% of net sales 6.1% 1.0% 14.9% (1.8)% 6.7% 

Capital expendltures 25.3 19.5 30.7 4.2 5.0 84.8 
(*) lnc/udlng inter-segment revenue 

Information on the activity in France and in other significant countries 

The activity of the Group in France is lower than 1 0% of sales. 

The non-current assets, excluding the non-affected Goodwill coming from the merger between T arkett and Sommer 
on the early 2000's, represents also less than 10% of the total non-current assets of the Group in 2013 and in 2012. 

Within Tarkett, we considera threshold of 25% of the net sales as significant. Only one country is concerned: the 
United States of America. This country actually represents 30.8% of the net sales in 2013 and 30.4% of the preforma 
net sales in 2012. The non-current assets of the United States of America represent 42.2% of the total non-current 
assets of the Group on December 31, 2013 and 42.0% on December 31, 2012. 
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None of Tarkett's customers represents more than 10% of its sales. 
The largest customer represents less than 5% of the sales in 2013, as in the previous years. 

NOTE 5- OTHER OPERA TING INCOME- OTHER OPERA TING EXPENSES 

Other operating income 
Gain on disposai of fixed assets 
Other operating incarne 

Other operating expenses 
Other operating expenses 

Total other operating income and expenses 

Dec 31, 2013 

0.3 
8.6 
8.9 

(14.8) 
(14.8) 

(5.9) 

Dec 31, 2012 
restated • 

7.6 
7.6 

(10.3) 
(10.3) 

(2.8) 

This category includes ali operating income and expanses that cannot be directly attributed to business functions. 

NOTE 6- FINANCIAL RESULT 

FINANCIAL INCOME 
lnterest income on loans assets & cash equiwlents 
Other financial income 

FINANCIAL EXPENSES 
lnterest expenses on loans and owrdrafts 
lnterest expanses on capitalleases 
Commissions expenses on financial liabilities 
lnterest on pr0\4sions for pensions 
Foreign exchange rate lasses 
Other net financial expenses 
lmpairment on financial assets 
ProfiUGain on disposai of shares 
Net loss on interest rate instruments 

Net finance costs 
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Dec 31, 2013 

1.3 
0.3 
1.6 

(16.2) 
(0.2) 
(5.0) 
(6.4) 
(4.1) 
(0.3) 
(0.1) 

(0.8) 
(33.0) 

(31 .4) 

Dec 31,2012 
restated * 

2.0 

0.5 
2.5 

(12.9) 
(0.2) 
(6.6) 
(3.8) 
(2.5) 
(0.6) 
(0.1) 
(0.1) 
0.2 

(26.5) 

(24.0) 
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NOTE 7 -INCOME TAX 

lncome tax (current and deferred) is detailed as follows: 

Current tax 
Deferred tax 
Total income tax 

Dec 31, 2013 

(51.9) 
4.1 

(47.9) 

Dec 31, 2012 
restated * 

(52.5) 
10.2 

(42.3) 

Theoretical income taxes determined using the French income tax rate of 34.43% for 2013 and 2012 can be 
reconciled as follows to the actual income tax charge: 

lncome taxat French income tax rate 
Effect of: 

Taxation of foreign companies at different rates * 
Recognition of deferred tax assets relating to pre\1ous years 
Change in unrecognised deferred tax assets 
Permanent differences-non deductible items 
Tax costs related to di\1dends (WHT, french surtax 3%) 
Other items 

lncome tax expenses 

*The difference with the tax rate at 34.43% is presented here. 

NOTE 8 - GOODWILL 

The evolution of Goodwill can be analysed as follows: 

Opening carrying amount 
New goodwill 
Adjustment to initial purchase priee allocation of Tandus 
Effects of mo-..ements in exchange rates 
Other 
Closing carrying amount 

Dec 31, 2013 

(51 .0) 

31.3 
19.6 

(21.5) 
(4.6) 

(17.8) 
(3.8) 

(47.9) 

Dec 31,2013 

449.1 

(12.5) 
(10.9) 

425.6 

Dec 31, 2012 
restated * 

(43.9) 

24.8 
17.2 

(26.8) 
3.1 

(12.7) 
(4.0) 

(42.3) 

Dec 31, 2012 
restated * 

276.8 
174.1 

(5.5) 
3.7 

449.1 

The main variation is explained by the allocation of goodwill following purchase priee allocation of Tandus group and 
results in a goodwill decrease of €(12.5)m for which details are given in note 2.2 "Purchase accounting of Tandus 
acquisition". 

No impairment !osses have been recognised during 2013 and 2012. 
An increase of 1% of the discount rate pre-tax would have not generated an additional impairment of the goodwill of 
the Group. 

The allocation of goodwill between the various CGU's is as follows: 
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Dec 31, 2013 Dec 31, 2012 restated * 

Gross value Net value Gross value Net value 
EMEA 62.5 61.9 62.9 62.3 
North America 216.2 199.1 238.2 221.1 
CIS & Others 96.5 95.5 96.5 95.5 
Sports 74.8 69.1 75.8 70.1 
TOTAL 449.9 425.6 473.6 449.1 

At the end of Oecember 2013, there is an amou nt of €7 .4m of intangible asset in gross and net value with an 
indefinite life positioned in Tandus Group CGU's. At the end of 2012, there was no intangible asset with an indefinite 
life. 

NOTE 9 -INTANGIBLE, TANGIBLE AND FINANCIAL ASSETS 

Carrying amounts 

Research & de\elopment 
Patents 
Trademarks 
Computer software 
Other intangible assets 
Advance payments and fixed assets in progress 
Intangible assets 

Real property and lights equivalents to real property 
Leased buildings 
Technical equipment and machinery 
Leased land and equipment 
Advance payments and fixed assets in progress 
Property, plant and equipment (*) 

Bonds, debenture loan & oth sec. ln\est- Long-term 
Financial in\estments and receivables- Long-term 
Loan receivables - Long-term 
Seculity deposit- Long-term 
Other flnancial assets 

Dec 31, 2013 

4.3 
44.0 
17.8 
31.0 
6.6 
7.1 

110.9 

181.0 
4.8 

191.6 
4.9 
33.1 

415.4 

2.7 
22.1 
0.3 
2.4 
27.5 

Dec 31, 2012 
restated * 

4.2 
52.9 
7.8 
24.9 
8.5 
0.1 
98.4 

193.4 
5.8 

200.7 
5.4 
23.4 

428.7 

1.1 
23.9 
0.5 
3.8 
29.3 

(*) Equipment ll.hich is currently under construction has been allocated to individual items. 

lmpairrnent lasses recognised during 2013 and 2012 can be broken down as follows: 

EMEA(*) 
Total 
(*) CGU08 Wood - EMEA 
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(5.1) 
(5.1) 

Dec 31, 2012 
restated * 
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The variations in gross value, depreciation and amortization break down as follow: 

Gross Book Value 

Resean:h & de\elopment 
Patents 
Trademarks 
Leasehold & similal rights 
Computer softw.we 
Olher intangible assets 
Intangible assets in process 
Intangible assets 

Real property and righls equ119ients to leal property 

Leased buildirgs 
Techrical equipment and macl1inery 
Leased land and equ1pment 
Adlence payments and bed assets in progress 
Property, plant and equlpment 

Bonds, debenllll! toan & eth sec. lmest-Lon!Jolerm 
FilliWIC1à Jn\II!Stmen1s and recei'<!lbles • ~tenn 
Loan receiwbles -long-lerm 
Security depo&il·l!!!J:Ierm 
Olher ftnanclal aats 

Accumulalld depreciation and amortizallon 

Resean:h & dl!lelopmenl 
Patents 
Trademallts 
Leasehold & similar righls 
Computer softw.we 
Other intangible assets 
lnlan!i!lble usets 

Real property and rights equi\lllents to real property 
Leased builcings 
T echnicat equipment and machinery 
Leased land and equ1pment 
Property, plant and equlpment 

Securily depo&it -lon!l:!erm 
Olher HnanclaJ assets 
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Balance at 
Dec 31, 2012 Additions 

resta te d' 

8.2 1.4 
120.4 0.2 
17.2 

51.3 9.8 
7.5 
0.1 6.1 

2o.t7 17.5 

389.4 3.3 
20.2 0.1 

1,066.5 18.8 
13.1 1.9 
23.4 58.9 

1,512.5 83.0 

1.1 4.6 
23.9 (2.1) 
0.5 
7.0 0.2 

32.4 2.7 

Balance at 
Dec 31, 2012 Depreciation 

resta te d' 

(4.0) (1.0) 
(67.5) (9.6) 
(9.3) (2.2) 
(0.0) 

(26.4) (9.5) 
1.0 (1.6) 

(106.3) (23.8) 

(195.9) (16.9) 
(14.3) (1.1) 
(865.8) (67.6) 
(7.7) (2.3) 

{1,083.8! j88.0) 

(3. 1) 
(3.1) 

Change ln Change ln Foreign 
D11110sals Transfer accounllng ex change 

sçope 
polldes dlllerences 

(0.3) 
(0.5) 3.0 (5.4) 
(0.1) 13.2 (1.6) 

(0.5) 7.9 (1.7) 
(0.1) (0.5) 

1.0 (0.1) 
(0.7) 8.4 16.1 (9.5) 

(2.1) (0.1) 4.7 0.2 (6.1) 
{0.8) 

(12.3) (0.8) 33.0 0.8 (25.2) 

(0.1) (48.1) (1.0) 
(14.6) (U) (10.5) 1.0 (33.1) 

(3.0) 8.0 (8.5) 0.4 
(0.1) 1.5 (1.1) 
(0.1) 

(1.4) (0.6) 
(3.3) 8.0 (U) (1.3) 

Change ln 
Change ln 

Disposais Reversai lmpalrment accounting scope 
pollcles 

0.5 
0.1 
0.6 

1.8 1.1 0.1 (0.1) 
0.2 

12.3 5.1 0.9 (0.8) 

14.0 6.5 0.9 (0.9) 

jO.t) 
j0.1) 

Balance at 
Dec 31, 2013 

9.3 
117.8 
28.7 

66.8 
6.9 
7.1 

236.6 

389.2 
19.5 

1,080.8 
14.9 
33.1 

1,537.5 

2.7 
22.1 
0.3 
5.1 
30.2 

Foreign 
Balance at Dec 

Tnmsfer exchange 
31, 2013 

dlllerences 

0.1 (5.0) 
3.3 (7U) 
0.6 (10,9) 

(1.1) 0.7 (35.8) 
0.1 (0.3) 

{1.1) 4.9 j125.7) 

(2.3) 4.2 (208.2) 
0.5 {14.7) 

5.2 21.5 {889.2) 
(10.0) 

2.9 26.3 (1,122.1! 

0.5 (2.7} 
0.5 {2.7} 
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Gross Book Valut 

Research & delelopmenl 
Patents 
Trademarh 
leaseldd & similar righls 
Computer software 
Olher intangible as sets 
l11~ible assels in process 
Intangible assels 

Real property and righls equilalenls lo real property 
Leased btlildings 
Teehnical equipmenl and machÎI!Eiy 
Leased land and equipmenl 
M.ence paymeols and lxed assels in ~s 
Pr~!!l· plant and equlpment 

Bonds. debenlure loan & oth sec. nest- long-lerm 
Finaneial irMstments and recer.ebles - t.ong.lenn 
Loan receiVilbies • Long-term 
Securily depoü -Long-lerm 
Other financial assets 

Accumulaltd depreciation and amortization 

Reseateh & deo.elopment 
Patents 
Trademarks 
Leasehold & similar rights 
Compuler software 
Olher iliangiUe assets 
lnlangiblt assels 

Real property and rigltts ~s lo real property 
Leased b\ikillgs 
Technical equipmenl and machinely 
Leased land and equipment 
Prope!!_l, plant and equlpmenl 

Seeurity deposit • Long-lerm 
Other financial assets 
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Balance at 
Dee 31, 2011 

rtslaled' 

6.9 
124.3 
18.8 
0.5 
31.8 
10.0 

192.2 

356.2 
20.1 

934.7 
13.0 
5.5 

1,329.5 

1.5 
17.0 
0.1 
6.7 
25.3 

Balance al 
Dee 31, 2011 

restated' 

(3.3) 
(59.5) 
(9.2) 
(0.3) 
(13.9) 
0.2 

(86.0) 

(168.0) 
(13.2) 
(755.3) 
(5.8) 

(942.3) 

(3.4) 
(3.4) 

Additions Disposais 

2.4 (1.4) 
0.1 (0.0) 
0.1 

14.9 (0.3) 
(2.6) 

0.4 
17.8 (4.3) 

2.4 {0.3) 

22.1 (18.7) 
0.0 
42.1 (0.2) 
6U (19.2) 

(0.5) 
7.3 

(0.1) 
0.4 (0.1) 
7.3 (8.1) 

Depreciation Disposais 

(0.5) 
(9.2) 
(0.6) 

(6.7) 0.3 
(1.7) 2.5 
(18.6) 2.8 

(16.3) 0.2 
(1.2) 
(58.0) 18.5 
(1.9) 
(77.4) 18.7 

Change in F~igll Balance at 
TraMJer ex change Dee31, 2012 scope 

differences rell.lled' 

0.2 0.1 8.2 
(1.8) 0.1 (2.2) 120.4 
(1.4) (0.3) 17.2 

(0.5) 
7.6 (2.2) (0.4) 51.3 

0.3 (0.2) 7.5 
(0.3) 0.1 

4.5 (2.5) (3.2) 204.7 

24.2 7.1 (0.3) 389.4 
20.2 

106.4 19.1 2.8 1,066.5 
0.1 13.1 

t3 (24.9) (0.3) 23.4 
131.9 1.5 2.2 1,512.5 

1.1 
(0.4) 23.9 

0.5 0.5 
0.4 0.0 (0.4) 7.0 
0.4 0.5 (0.8) 32.4 

Change in 
Foreign Balance at 

Reversai lmpairmenl Transfer exdlange Dee31, 2012 
ac: ope 

differences restated' 

0.1 (0.2) (0.1) (4.0) 
1.2 (67.5) 

0.4 0.1 (9.3) 
0.3 (0.0) 

(6.3) (0.1) 0.2 (26.4) 
(0.1) 0.1 1.0 

u (U) (0.1) 1.5 (106.3) 

1.0 (12.5) 0.2 (0.5) (185.9) 
0.2 (0.2) (lU) 
5.6 (73.9) 0.8 (3.6) (865.8) 

(7.7) 
6.8 (86.4) 1.1 (4.2) (1,083.8) 

(0.2) 0.4 (3.1) 
(G.2) u (3.1) 
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NOTE 10 - INVENTORIES 

Raw materials and supplies 
Wor1< in progress 
Finished goods 
Sam pies 
Dis pla ys 
Consumables and spare parts 
Total Gross value 
Pro\1sions for inventory depreciation 
Total Inventories 

Detail of the provision for inventory depreciation 

Dec 31, 2012 
reslated • 

Raw materials and supplies (8.2) 
Work in progress (4.2) 
Finished goods (20.3) 
Samples (1.0) 
Ois pla ys (1.2) 
Consumables and spare parts (5.2) 
Total provisions for lnvento!l: depreciation (40.2) 

Oec 31,2013 

Allowance 

(4.1) 
(3.8) 
(15.8) 
(1.3) 

(1.1) 
(26.1~ 

88.3 
48.7 

201.5 
6.1 

21.4 
366.0 
(47.5) 
318.6 

Reversai 

4.2 
2.3 
10.3 
0.4 
1.2 
0.5 

18.9 

Oec 31, 2012 
restated * 

100.8 
41.5 

208.2 
1.9 
1.6 
19.6 

373.5 
(40.2) 
333.3 

FX impacts 

0.2 
(0.8) 
0.4 
0.1 
0.0 
0.1 
0.0 

Dec 31,2013 

(7.9) 
(6.5) 

(25.3) 
(1 .9) 

(5.8) 
!47.5) 

The rate of inventory provisions is applied in a similar way for the different periods. The change between 2012 and 
2013 is mainly explained by the application of the Group accounting rules in Tandus. This has been adjusted via the 
finalisation of the purchase accounting of Tandus (cf 2.2.). 

The cost of sales in 2013 amounts to €1,162.3m. 

NOTE 11- TRADE RECEIVABLES 

Related party receivables 
Third party receivables 
Total Gross value 
Pro\1sions for doubtful receivables 
Total Trade receivables 

Oec 31, 2013 

7.6 
294.0 
301.6 
(21 .9) 
279.7 

Oec 31, 2012 
restated * 

8.4 
299.3 
307.6 
(20.0) 
287.6 

The variation of the provision for doubtful receivables amounts €1 .9m and is mainly explained as follow : 
€(4.6)m of allowance, 
€2.5m of reversai, 
€(0.2)m of change impact. 
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Detail of unimpaired overdues 

Receivables, trade owrdue 0- 180 days 

Receivables, trade owrdue 181 -270 days 

Receivables, trade owrdue 271 - 360 days 

Receivables, trade owrdue > 360 days 
Receivables, bankrupcy procedure /legal cases 
Receivables due 

NOTE 12- OTHER RECEIVABLES 

Total Other receivables non current 
Prepaid expanses current 
lncome tax receivable current 
VAT receivable current 
Other accounts receivables and other assets current 
Total Other receivables current 

NOTE 13- SHARE CAPITAL 

Share capital 

Dec 31, 2013 

24.3 

0.1 

(3.2) 
3.8 
25.0 

Dec 31, 2013 

0.2 
18.1 
13.4 
17.4 
10.3 
59.2 

Dec 31, 2012 
restated * 

28.7 

0.6 

1.1 
(2.4) 
(0.2) 
27.7 

Dec 31,2012 
restated * 

14.2 
9.3 

20.3 
16.1 
59.9 

As of December 31 5
'. 2013, the Company's share capital is of €318,613,480 (€316,108,260 as of December 31st. 

2012) and is divided into 63,722,696 shares of a nominal value of €5 each (15,805,413 shares of a nominal value of 
€20 each as of December 31st. 2012). 

NOTE 14- EARNINGS PER SHARE 

Basic earnings per share 

Basic earnings per share as of December 2013 are calculated on the basis of the Group's share of net profit and on 
the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period (i.e. after deduction of the weighted average 
number of treasury shares ). 

Weighted average number of shares outstanding (basic) 

ln thousands of shares 

Weighted average number of shares 
W eighted average number of treasury shares held by Tarkett 
Welghted average number of shares 
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Dec 31, 2013 

63,276 
(1,335) 
61,941 

Dec 31, 2012 
restated * 

63,222 
(1 ,437) 
61,784 
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Diluted earnings per share 

Diluted earnings per share as of December 2013 are calculated on the basis of the Group's share of net profrt and 
on the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period and weighted average number of potential 
shares outstanding (i.e. after deduction of the weighted average number of treasury shares). 

Weighted average number of shares outstanding (diluted) 

ln thousands of shares 

Weighted awrage number of shares (basic) 
Weighted awrage number of treasury shares held by Tarkett 
Effect of shares plan issue 
Welghted average number of shares (diluted) 

Dec 31, 2013 

63,276 
(1 ,335) 

624 
62,565 

Dec 31,2012 
restated * 

63,222 
(1 ,437) 

560 
62,344 

NOTE 15- NET DEBT -INTEREST-BEARING LOANS AND BORROWINGS 

15.1 Net debt 

lnterest-bearing loans and borrowings- non-current 
lnterest-bearing loans and borrowings - current 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Total Net Debt 

15.2 lnterest bearing loans and borrowings 

Bank loans (unsecured) 
Other loans (unsecured) 
Bank overdrafts (unsecured) 
Finance Jease obligations 
Total interest-bearing loans and borrowings 

The unsecured bank Joans include mainly: 

Dec 31, 2013 

501.3 
24.4 

(96.7) 
429.0 

Dec 31, 2012 
restated* 

335.7 
187.2 
(81.1) 
441.8 

Dec 31, 2013 Dec 31, 2012 restated* 
Non-current Current Non-current Current 

498.7 22.8 333.7 177.5 
0.6 1.0 8.1 

1.1 0.7 
2.0 0.6 1.0 1.0 

501.3 24.4 335.7 187.2 

(i) a €360.0m tranche drawn against a €450.0m syndicated Term facility executed ln October 2013 and 
maturing in full in October 2018. A second tranche of €90.0m, with the same maturity, was confirmed in 
December 2013 for a drawing in 2014; 
(ii) €25m drawn against a multlcurrency and multi-borrower syndicated revolving facility executed by Tarkett 
on June 2011 for up to €450.0m and maturing in June 2016; 
(iii) an amortisable term Joan maturing ln May 2016 consisting of a tranche of €100.0m and a tranche of 
US$40.0m, out of which 15% are repald in May 2014 and 25% ln May 2015. This Joan includes certain 
prepayment clauses in the case Tarkett would issue a capitallncrease or bonds in the capital debt market. 
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15.3 Details of loans and borrowings 

lnterest Dec 31, 12 months 2 years 3to 5 More than 
Currency Rate 2013 or lessuntll untll years until 

5 years 
Dec 31,2013 12131/14 12131/15 12131/16 

Unsecured loans 
Term Facilities Europe EUR 0.7%-2.1% 

,. 
465.0 16.3 ~ 26.2 422.5 

Tenn Facilities Europe USD 2.6% ~ 29.0 4.4 7.3 ~ 17.3 
Re\()1\oing Facilities Europe EUR 1.1% 

,. 
25.0 25.0 

Re\()1\oing Facilities Europe USD 
Other bank loans 3.7%-5.3% , 2.6 2.0 0.3 0.3 
Secured loans 
Bank loans North America 
Bank loans Eastem Europe 
Total Bank loans 521.6 22.7 33.8 465.1 
Asset backed facilities (1} 
Otherloans EUR 0.7%4.5% 

,,. 
0.4 0.1 0.1 0.2 

Bank o~oerdralts .. 1.1 1.1 
Finance lease obligations ~ 2.6 0.6 0.6 1.2 0.2 
Totallnterest-bearing loans and borrowlnss 525.7 24.5 34.5 466.5 0.2 

(1) one-year reneOMJble facility 

lnterest Dec 31, 12 months 2 years 3to 5 More than 
Currency 

Rate 2012 or less untll untll years untll 5 years 
Dec 31, 2012 restated 12131/13 12131/14 12131/15 

Unsecured loans 
Term Faclllties Europe EUR 1.4%-2.8% 264.0 150.0 114.0 
Re\()1\Ang Facilities Europe EUR 1.0% 120.0 120.0 
Re\()l\1ng Faclllties Europe USD 1.1% 99.3 99.3 
Other bank Jeans EUR 3.4%-5.1% 3.1 2.1 0.4 0.6 
Secured loans 
Bank loans North America USD 6.9% 0.1 0.1 
Bank loans Eastem Europe UAH-RSD 
Total Bank loans 486.5 152.2 114.4 219.9 
As set backed facilities (1) EUR 0.6% 25.2 25.2 
Other loans EUR 0.2%-2.6% 8.5 8.1 0.1 0.3 
Bank owrdralts 0.7 0.7 
Finance lease obligations 2.0 1.0 0.3 0.4 0.3 
Totallnterest-bearing loans and borrowlngs 522.9 187.2 114.8 220.6 0.3 

(1) one-year renev.eble facility 

The facilities mentioned from (i) to (iii) above contain covenants which are binding on the borrowing company, in 
which financial covenants related to a ratio Net Debt on adjusted Ebitda not to exceed 3.0x, and a ratio Ebit/Net 
lnterests not to be lower than 2.5x .. 

15.4 Covenants 

The Group complies with ali covenants requirements as at December 31, 2013, and with Financial covenants as 
reported below: 

Net Debt 1 Adjusted EBITDA 

Nel Debt 
Adjusted E B ITDA 
Ratio (1) 
(1) has ta be below 3 

EBIT 1 Net lnterests 

EBIT 
Net interests 
Ratio (2) 
(2) has ta be over 2.5 
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Dec 31, 2013 

429.0 
310.0 

1.4 

Dec 31, 2013 

210.9 
15.0 
14.1 

Dec 31, 2012 Dec 31, 2012 
publlshed resta te d* 

452 .2 441 .8 
260.1 262.2 

1.7 1 .7 

Dec 31 , 2012 Dec 31, 2012 
publlshed re state d* 

173.1 175.2 
11 .7 11 .1 
14.8 15.8 
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15.5 Cash and cash equivalent by nature 

Current cash 
Remunerated cash balances 
Short term treasury notes and Monay Market funds 
Cash and cash equivalents 

NOTE 16 - OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES 

Fair value of derivatives non current 
Other financial liabilities non current 
Total Other financialliabilities non current 
Accrued interest expenses current 
Fair value of derivatives current 
Other financialliabilities current 
Total Other financial liabilities current 

NOTE 17- TRADE PAYABLES 

Trade payables 
Trade notes payable 
Total Trade payables 

NOTE 18 - OTHER LIABILITIES 

Dec 31, 2013 

35.6 
35.5 
25.5 
96.7 

Oec 31,2013 

2.0 
4.7 
6.7 
1.6 
0.3 
1.1 
3.0 

Dec 31, 2013 

216.3 
3.5 

219.8 

Dec 31, 2012 
restated* 

28.9 
29.3 
22.9 
81.1 

Dec 31,2012 
restated* 

9.1 
6.8 
16.0 
0.8 

(0.4) 
2.0 
2.4 

Dec 31, 2012 
restated* 

240.6 
3.8 

244.3 

Dec 31, 2013 Dec 31, 2012 restated* 

Liabilities related to employees 
lncome tax 
VAT and other taxes 
Sales rebates 
Other liabilities 
Total Other liabllities 

80.1 
18.6 
13.8 
27.9 
26.6 

167.0 

Written put options or forward contracts granted to non-controlling shareholders 

Share put options on non-controlling interests 

78.7 
12.6 
11.0 
33.7 
26.5 

162.6 

At the end of December 2013 and December 2012, the amount of debt booked in the Group consolidated financial 
statements relative to share put options on non-controlling shareholders is respectively equal to €2.1m and €2.3m. 

As per 31 December 2013, this debt is composed of 2 options, granted to non-controlling shareholders of: 
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- Morton Extrusionstechnik (MET) for €2.1 m, corresponding to 49% of residual shares held by non-controlling 

interests; 
- Fieldturf Benelux BV for €0.04m, corresponding to 49% of residual shares held by non-controlling lnterests. 

The debt relative to the company MET corresponds to the discounted value of the formula included in the initial 
agreement updated following 2012 MET business plan. 

NOTE 19- DEFERRED TAX 

Deferred taxation is shawn on the balance sheet separately from current tax assets and liabilities and categorized 
among non-current items. 

Deferred tax assets 
Net operating lasses and credits carried forward 
Pro'vtsion for Vëlluation allowance on NOLCF 
OTA for pensions and healthcare benefits 
Other items temporarily non deductible 
Change in unrecognised deferred tax assets 
Internai profit eliminations 
Netted against deferred tax liabilities 
Total Deferred tax assets 

Deferred tax liabilities 
Fixed assets revaluation 
Other deferred tax liabilities 
Netted against deferred tax assets 
Total Deferred tax liabilities 

Dec 31, 2013 

184.9 
(130.4) 

32.6 
64.7 

{18.1) 
3.1 

(44.1) 
92.7 

39.8 
15.1 

(44.1) 
10.8 

Dec 31,2012 
restated* 

173.9 
(116.0) 

25.8 
71.0 

{12.7) 
4.6 

(50.4) 
96.1 

42.8 
13.1 

(50.4) 
5.4 

Net deferred tax assets for tax lasses and unused tax credits carried forward are recognized for a cumulated amount 
of €54.5m of which €37.9m related to the affiliates within the US tax Group, €1.4m related to the French tax Group, 
and €7.3m related to the Canadian affiliate. 

The €54.5m are split between €52.8m of net deferred tax assets for tax lasses, and €1. 7m of net unused tax credits. 
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NOTE 20 - PROVISIONS 

Balance at Change ln Foreign 
Balance at 

Dec 31 , 2012 Allowance Decraase accounting Transfer ex change 
Dec 31, 2013 

rntated* pollcles gain & loss 

Producl warranly proiAsion - Long-lerm 2.2 0.8 (0.3) 0.1 (0.1) 2.8 
Restructuring proloislons - Long-term 0.6 0.6 
Clalms & iligations provisions - Long-tenn 2.3 0.3 (0.4) (0.1) 2.1 
Other pro-.!slons - Long-lerm 3.6 0.3 (0.2) 0.7 (0.7) 3.6 
Proloision for addilional lax assessments - Long-lerm 1.0 1.4 (0.3) 0.4 2.4 
Financial llabilities - Long lerm 29.0 2.0 (1 .3) 29.7 
Total Provisions- Long-term 38.1 5.3 (0.9! 0.4 {0.3) (1.5) 41.2 

Product warranty proloisions - short-lerm 10.6 1.7 (3.2) 0.7 (0.4) 9.4 
Reslrucluring provisions -short-lerm 3.5 2.2 (2.4) (0.1) 3.2 
Claims & lltigations provisions - short-lerm 21.7 9.0 (8.7) (0.5) (0.6) 20.9 
Other oper. proloisions - short-lerm 0.4 0.2 (0.1) (0.3) 0.1 
Total Provisions- Short-lerm 36.2 13.2 (14.5) (0.0) (1.1) 33.7 

Total Provision cu"ent & non<urrant 74.3 18.5 (15.4) 0.4 (0.3) (2.6) 74.8 

Balance at 
Change ln 

Foreign Balance at 
Dec 31, 2011 Allowance Decrease Transfer exchange Dec 31, 2012 

restated* 
acope 

iain & loss restated* 

Producl warranly proo.ision - Long-lerm 1.7 0.1 (0.3) 0.7 2.2 
Claims & lltlgalions provisions - Long-term 2.2 1.1 (0.9) 2.3 
Other proloisions - Long-term 4.5 0.1 (0.3) (0.8) 3.6 
Proloision lOr addilional lax assessments - Long-lerm 5.1 0.9 (0.1) {5.0) 0.1 1.0 
Financial llabilities - Long lerm 21.8 7.8 (0.6) 29.0 
Total Provisions- Lon~-term 35.2 10.1 (1.6) 0.7 (5.8! (0.5) 38.1 

Producl warranty proloisions - Short-term 5.5 0.2 (0.8) 2.1 3.4 10.6 
Restrucluring proloisions - Short-lerm 3.7 2.8 (2.5) (0.6) 3.5 
Claims & "tigations provisions - Short-lerm 21.7 7.5 (6.2} (1.0) (0.2) 21.7 
Ottl&r oper. proloisions - Short·lerm 0.2 0.4 (0.2) 0.4 
Total Provisions· Short-term 31.1 10.9 (9.6! 2.1 1.8 f0.2) 36.2 

Total Provision cu"ent & non-curra nt 86.4 21.0 (11.2) 2.8 (4.0) (0.6) 74.3 

At the end of Oecember 2013, the variations in the account Financial liabilities - Long term concern Asbestos 
provision booked in Tarkett Domco Products Texas lnc. (Cf. NOTE 26 - OTHER CONTINGENCIES). 

NOTE 21 -EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 

ln accordance with the laws and practices of each country in which it operates, Tarkett participates in, or maintains, 
employee benefit plans providing retirement pensions, post-retirement health care, other long term benefits Oubilees) 
and post-employment benefits (retirement indemnities, pre-retirement) to eligible employees, former employees, 
retirees and their beneficiaries fulfilling the required conditions. 

These employee benefits plan exposes Tarkett to actuarial risks, such as interest rate risk. 

Valuation of these obligations is carried out yearly at the balance sheet date by independant actuaries. 
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A.mounts recognlzed ln the slatement of flnanclal pooltlon 
Defined benefit obligation 
Fair ~elue of plan assets 
Funded statua 
Effect of as sel ceiling 
Net liabllltyl(a-t) 
Repre•nted by: 
Nelliability 
Net (asse!) 

A.mounts recognl•d ln the lncome lltatement 
Cunent saNca cost 
Pest ser..;ce cost 
(Gain) lloss on settlements 
Net inlerest cosl 
Remeasurernents of Ott>er Long Term Benefits 
Administrsli-e ex penses and taxes 
Total expanses included in income slatement 

A.mounts recognlzed ln ùteme nt of comprehensive lncome (grollll of ta x) 
Eflect of changes in demographie essumptions 
Eflect of changes in financial assumptlons 
Eflect of e~perience adjuslments 
(Retum) on plan assais (excluding interest income) 
Changes in asse! ceiling (excluding lnterestlncome) 
Total pa nttlon cost recognlzed ln the OCI 

Change ln nelllabllitlea racognized in the balance sheet 
Balance sheelliabllity/a-t at beglnnlng of year 
Total e)(penses teeognized in incarne stalement 
Amounts recognised in OCI in the ftnanclal year 
Business combinations 1 di~eSiitures /trensrers 
Employer contributions made in the lnancial yaar 
Benefits paid direclly by company ln the financial year 
Exchange rate adjustment - (gain)lloss 
Balance sheat llablllty/a-t u al end of year 

Change in beneflt obligation 
Elene nt obligation at beglnnlng of year 
Current ser.ice cost 
Past sef'Àce cost 
(Gain) /loss on satuements 
lnlerest expense 
Beneftt payments from plan 
Benefit payments from employer 
Plan seUlement 
Plan participants' contributions 
Expanses paid 
Business comblnations 1 di...,stitures /trsnsfers 
Effect of changes in demographie assomptions 
Eflect of changes in financial assumptions 
Eflecl of experience adjustments 
Exchange rate changes 
Benefit obligation at and of year 

Change in plan •-ts 
Fa Ir va lue of plan a aats al beglnnlng of yaar 
lnterest income 
Employer contributions 
Employer direct benefit paymenls 
Plan participants' contributions 
Benefit payments rom plan 
Benefit payments from employer 
Plan seulement 
E~penses paid 
Busfness eombinations 1 dîwslilures 1 transfers 
(Retum) on plan assais (excluding inleresl income) 
Exchange rate changes 
Fa Ir va lue of plan a ssets at and of year 
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Dec 31, 2.013 
Polit· 

Pentlions employment 
heallhc:are 

benefits 
201.9 33 
83.0 
118.9 3.3 

118.9 3.3 

118.9 3.3 

Dec31, 2013 
Polit· 

Panttlons employment 
haallhcare 

beneftts 
3.4 0.1 

(0.4) 
(0.0) 
4.8 01 
0.7 
0.8 
9.3 0.2. 

Dec 31, 2013 
Pool-

Pensions 
employment 
h&althcant 

beneflts 
1.5 0.0 

(15.2) (0.2) 
1.0 (0.3) 

(4.4) 

(17.0) (0.41 

Dec 31,2013 
Post· 

Pen8iona 
employmenl 

he a lthc:are 
beneflts 

138.4 3.8 
9.3 0.2 

(17.0) (0.4) 
0.2 

(5.0) (0.2) 
(4.6) 
!2.3) (0.2) 
118.9 3.3 

Dac 31, 2.013 
Post-

Penal ons 
employment 
haalthcara 

benefits 
224.7 3.8 

3.4 0.1 
(0.4) 
(0.0) 
8.0 0.1 
(6.4) (0.2) 
(4.6) 
(5.9) 
0.2 
(0.2) 
0.2 
1.5 0.0 

(15.2) (0.2) 
2.1 (0.3) 
(5.5) (0.2! 
201.9 3.3 

Dec 31, 2013 
Post-

Pensions employment 
healthcare 

banalite 
86.7 
3.2 
5.0 0.2 
4.6 
0.2 
(6.4) (0.2) 
(4.6) 
(5.9) 
(1.1) 

4.4 
(3.2) 
83.0 

Dec 31, 2012 nustatad' 

Polit-

TOTAL Penltions 
employment 

TOTAL 
healthcare 

benefits 
205.2 224,7 3.8 228.5 
83.0 86.7 86.7 
122.2 138.0 3.8 141.8 

0.4 0.4 
122.2. 138.4 3.8 142..2 

122.2 138.4 3.8 142.2 

Dec 31, 2012. reslated' 
Polit-

TOTAL Pensions 
employment 

TOTAL 
healthcara 

be nants 
3.5 1.8 1.8 

(0.4) 
(0.0) 
4.9 3.7 0.1 3.7 
0.7 0.0 0.0 
0.8 
9.5 5.5 0.1 5.8 

Dec 31, 2.012 ralltllted' 
Post-

TOTAL Pensions 
employment 

TOTAL 
haalthcare 

benefits 
1.5 

(15.3) 262 0.2 26.4 
0.8 7.0 7.0 

(4.4) (3.6) (3.6) 
(0.8) (0.8) 

117.~ 2.8.7 0.2. 2.8.9 

Dac 31, 2012 relltated' 
Post-

TOTAL Pensions 
employment 

TOTAL 
healthcare 

beneflts 
142.2 107.7 1.7 109.3 
9.5 5.5 0.1 5.6 

(17.5) 28.7 0.2 28.9 
0.2 5.4 2.0 7.4 
(5.2) (5.1) (0.1) (5.2) 
(4.6) (4.2) (4.2) 
(2.4! 0.4 (0.1) 0.3 
122.2 138.4 3.8 142.2. 

Dec 31, 2012 re lita led' 
Post· 

TOTAL Pensions 
employment 

TOTAL 
healthcare 

beneflts 
2.2.8.5 174-4 1.7 178.1 

3.5 1.8 1.8 
(0.4) 
(0.0) 
8.1 7.9 0.1 8.0 

(6.5) (6.0~ (0.1) (6.1) 
(4.6) (4.2) (4.2) 
(5.9) 
0.2 0.1 0.1 

(0.2) (0.1) (0.1) 
0.2 19.4 2.0 21.4 
1.5 

(15.3) 25.0 0.2 25.2 
1.9 6.9 6.9 

(5.6) (0.8) (0.1) !0.6) 
2.05.2. 224.7 3.8 228.5 

Dec 31, 2012 restated' 
Polit-

TOTAL Penltions amployment 
TOTAL 

healthcare 
bene lits 

88.7 68.0 68.0 
3.2 4.2 4.2 
5.2 5.1 0.1 5.2 
4.6 4.2 4.2 
0.2 0.1 0.1 

(6.5) (6.0) (0.1) (6.1) 
(4.6) (4.2) (4.2) 
(5.9) 
(1.1) (0.1) (0.1) 

12.7 12.7 
4.4 3.7 3.7 

p.2) (0.9) (0.9! 
83.0 86.7 88.7 
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Main actuariat assumptlons 

The actuarial accounting valuations are based on assumed future increases in salaries and benefits as weil as on a 
long-term interest rate. The main assumptions are in average as follows: 

Discount rate 
lncludlng: 

us 
Gerrnany 
Sweden 

UK 

Salary lncreases 
Inflation 

Dec 31, 2013 
Pensions Post-employment 

healthcare benefits 

4.30% 

5.00% 
3.10% 
4.00% 
4.40% 

3.03% 
2.21% 

5.00% 

Dec 31, 2012 restated* 
Pensions Post-employment 

healthcare beneflts 

3.65% 

4.00% 
2.80% 
3.50% 
3.90% 

2.98% 
2.11% 

4.00% 

At December 31, 2013 the weighted-average duration of the defined benefit obligation was 13.3 years. 

Percentage of plan assets by asset allocation 

The funds are allocated to: 

Dec 31,2012 
Dec 31. 2013 restated* 

- Equity 48.5% 48.2% 

-Bonds 28.4% 28.2% 
- Real Estate 3.2% 2.7% 

- Other 19.8% 20.9% 

The expected return on plan assets is determined for each plan according to the portfolio composition and the 
expected performance of each component. 

Ali equity and bonds have quoted priees in active markets. Assets under "Other" category are held by and large 
insurance contracts in Germany, ie 10.8%. Others corresponds to cash and cash equivalent linked to pensions plans 
in US and Canada. 

Expected employer contributions for 2014 amount to €11.3m. 

Sensitivity to discount rate assumptions 

lncrease of 50 ba sis point 
lncrease/(Decrease) in Defined Benefit Obligation 

Decrease of 50 basis point 
lncrease/(Decrease) in Defined Benefit Obligation 

• exclusing Tandus 
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Dec 31, 2013 

(12.5) 

14.2 

Dec 31, 2012 * 

(13.2) 

14.7 
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NOTE 22- PERSONNEL COSTS AND DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION 

Wages and salaries 
Pension costs 
Total Personnel costs 

Number 
Employees (average number) 

Key management personnel compensation 

Dec 31, 2013 

(507.5) 
(9.5) 

(517.0) 

11,134.0 

Dec 31 , 2012 
restated * 

(445.7) 
(6.3) 

(451.9) 

9,896.0 

The key management personnel includes the members of the Executive Management Committee and the members 
of the Supervisory Board. 

Short term employee benefits 
Share-based payments 
Total 

Dec 31, 2013 

7.1 
2.3 
9.4 

Dec 31,2012 
restated * 

6.5 
0.9 
7.5 

Compensation of the Group's key management personnel includes salaries, non-cash benefits and contributions to a 
post-employment defined benefit plan. 

NOTE 23- SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS 

MANAGEMENT EQUITY PLAN 

The Management Equity Plan implemented early 2008 and according to which certain managers have been entitled 
to purchase shares of the Group with associated rights to get free shares at the exit of one of the two main 
shareholders before the I.P.O. (KKR) has been effectively materialized in November 2013 at the time of Tarkett's 
introduction on the Paris stock exchange. 

This materialized in the attribution of 347 072 free shares, increasing the share capital for a total value €1 ,7m with a 
counterpart in retained earnings. 
Across the lifetime of the plan. the total expanse booked to consider the counterpart of the benefit granted amounted 
to €5.3m. 

LONG~TERM INCENTIVE PLANS 

As an initial precision, ali figures described below have been recalculated considering the division by 4 of the 
nominal value of the Tarkett shares taking place November 21st, 2013. 

From December 22, 2011 a Long-Term lncentive Plan, named LTIP 2011 , has been implemented for selected key 
executives of the Group. 
The ordinary free shares shall be awarded to the beneficiaries at the end of a vesting period ending June 30th, 2014, 
provided that an economie performance condition is satisfied (based on Group 3 years plan) and the beneficiaries 
have been continuously employed until June 30th, 2014. This plan has been placed under IFRS2 treatment "share­
based payment" (equity settled plan). The final amount granted will be calculated mid-2014 and the granted shares 
can be sold after July 2016 (to be noted that the Group has not issued any definite commitment that the shares 
would be repurchased after 2016). 
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The target amount of free shares to distribute is estimated at 193 333 as at December 31st, 2013 {211 600 as at 
December 31st, 2012). 
The fair market value at the time of the issuance of the plan is calculated as follows: 7x adjusted EBITDA less Net 
debt. This has been accordingly estimated at €15 per share. 
The expense in 2013 amounts to €0.9m before tax (€1.9m in 2012), and has been booked as administrative 
expense in the P&L with a counterpart in equity. 

From Decernber 17, 2012 a second Long-Term lncentive Plan, named LTIP 2012, has been implemented for 
selected key executives of the Group. 
The ordinary free shares shall be awarded to the beneficiaries at the end of a vesting period of June 30th, 2015, 
provided thal an economie performance condition is satisfied (based on the Group 3 years business plan) and the 
beneficiaries have been continuously employed until June 30th, 2015. This plan has been placed under IFRS2 
treatment "share-based payment" (equity settled plan). The final amount granted will be calculated mid-2015 and the 
granted shares can be sold immediately after being granted. 
The Group may decide in 2015 to grant, instead of shares, the equivalent value in cash calculated on the market 
priee, the company being now listed. 
The target amount of free shares to distribute is estimated at 374 532 as at December 31 51

, 2013 (275 600 as at 
December 31 51

, 2012) The fair market value at the time of the issuance of the plan is calculated as follows: 
7xEBITDA* Jess Net debt. This has been accordingly estimated at €23.5 per share based on December 31st, 2012 
figures. 
The expense in 2013 amounts to €3.5m before tax (€0.1m in 2012), and has been booked as administrative 
expense in the P&L with a counterpart in equity. 

Approved October 9th, 2013, a new Long-Term lncentive Plan, named LTIP 2013, has been implemented for 
selected key executives of the Group. 
The plan follows globally the same conditions th an the previous L TIP 2012. 
Accordingly, the ordinary free shares shall be awarded to the beneficiaries at the end of a vesting period of June 
30th, 2016, provided thal an economie performance condition is satisfied (based on the most recent Group 3 years 
business plan) and the beneficiaries have been continuously employed until June 30th, 2016. This plan is to be 
placed under IFRS2 treatment "share-based payment" (equity settled plan). The final amount granted will be 
calculated mid 2016 and the granted shares can be sold immediately after being granted. 
The Group may decide in 2016 to grant, instead of shares, the equivalent value in cash calculated on the market 
priee. 
The target amount of free shares to distribute is estimated at 406 112 as at December 31st, 2013. The market value 
at the time of the issuance of the plan has been defined at the introduction priee of the company on the Paris stock 
exchange November 22nd, which is €29 per share. 
The expanse in 2013 amounts to €1 .0m before tax and has been booked as administrative expense in the P&L with 
a counterpart in equity. 

NOTE 24- FINANCIAL RISKS AND FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 

Exposure to interest rate, currency, liquidity and credit risk arises in the normal course of Tarkett's activities. 
Derivative financial instruments are used to reduce the exposure to fluctuations in both foreign exchange and 
interest rates. While transactions are subject to the risk of market changes, such changes are generally offset by 
opposite effects on the hedged items. Liquidity and credit risk are managed following risk management policies 
approved by the Group's executive board. 

1 • FINANCIAL MARKET RISKS 

Fair values of the derivative financial instruments 

Derivative financial instruments are used by Group for risk hedging purposes only, and are recognized according to 
hedge accounting rules. The fair values of the Group's derivative financial instruments are recorded into the balance 
sheet in "Other financial liabilities, current" for what concerns derivatives hedging future cash flows, and in the 
relevant accounts for what concerns derivatives hedging recorded items. 
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lt amounts to the following figures: 

Currency swaps 

Options 

Total foreign currency derivatives 

Cash flow hedge swaps 
Options cash flow hedge 
Total interest rate derivatives 

1.1 lnterest rate risk 

Cee 31, 2013 

(0.2) 
(0.1) 
(0.3) 

(2.0) 
(2.0) 

Dec 31, 2012 
restated* 

(0.1) 
0.5 
0.4 

(3.7) 
(5.3) 
(9.1) 

The exposure to the interest rate risk is managed in a centralized manner by the Group. The general debt strategy 
defined by the Group consists of giving preference to variable interest rate debt over fixed interest rate debt, but also 
to protect a part of the debt over a period of three to five years against a rate increase which would result in an 
extensive damage. The hedging tools used are mainly cap or tunnel type derivatives. ln certain circumstances, 
swaps have been entered into to fix rates. The lnterest rate derivatives outstanding at closing are ali purposed for 
cash flow hedging and none is purposed for fair value hedging. 

Following is the interest rate structure of the net debt. Net debt is defined as interest-bearing loans minus cash and 
cash equivalents. 

Before interest rate hedge: 

Fix rate debt 
Floating rate debt 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Net debt 

After interest rate hedge: 

Fix rate debt 
Floating rate debt capped 
Floating rate debt 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Net debt 

lnterest rate derivatives 

Dec 31, 2013 

2.0 
523.7 
(96.7) 
429.0 

Dec 31, 2013 

2.0 
167.0 
356.7 
(96.7) 
429.0 

Dec 31, 2012 
restated* 

3.0 
519.9 
(81 .1) 
441.8 

Dec 31, 2012 
restated* 

117.0 
102.7 
303.2 
(81.1) 
441.8 

The financial instruments hedging floating rate debt are classified as cash flow hedges and recognised at fair value. 
At the balance sheet date, they represented a total national amou nt of €167 .Om maturing over the next four years, 
and consisting of caps or collars. Their fair value is calculated using the market rates prevailing at the balance sheet 
date as obtained from financial service companies. The fair value of the Group's lnterest rate cash flow hedges at 
the balance sheet date amounted to a latent liability of € 2.0m (2012: liability of €9.0m). The net affect of their 
variations in the income statement of the year represents a gain of €0.4m (2012: charge of €0.2m). 
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Sensitivity ana/ysis 

The Group incurs a risk on its results with the fluctuation of interest rates on interest~bearing financial instruments 
indexed on floating rates. Further, the interest rate derivatives qualified as cash flow hedges have an impact on 
equity. 

The sensitivity to interest rates variation of the financial instruments is calculated on the basis of interest-bearing 
non-derivatives and derivative financial instruments. Non derivative financial instruments are the interest-bearing 
borrowings net of cash and cash equivalents, and net of interest bearing loans granted to third parties or joint­
ventures. The analysis is based on the assumption of a constant debt nominal and debt management over 1 year 
from December 31 , 2013. 

Based on this, due to the current lever in interest rates and the rate fixing of the currently outstanding financial 
instruments, an instantaneous increase of ali interest rates by 1% would result in an increase of €3.5m before tax 
(2012: €2.2m), and an instantaneous decrease of ali interest rates by 1% orto 0% when applicable would result in a 
decrease of €0.7m before tax (2012: €0.2m). 

1.2 Exchange rate risk 

Transaction risk 

Exchange rate fluctuations have a direct impact on the Group's consolidated financial statements, derived from 
transactions regarding the Group entities which incur revenues and expanses in currencies other than their 
functional currency. 

The Group has attempted to develop its production capacities in the same geographie and monetary areas where it 
distributes its products. Moreover, through the choice of the invoicing currency for certain intra-Group transactions, 
the Group aims to offset revenues with costs in the same currency. ln certain unstable currency countries, the Group 
may also compensate the local currencies variations with priee indexations. Therefore the remaining exposure on 
cross-border transactions is moderate. The currencies to which the Group is most exposed are the US dollar, the 
British pound, the Australian dollar, the Norwegian crown, the Polish zloty, the Russian rubble and the euro as a 
foreign currency for the Swedish, Russian, Serbian and sorne American subsidiaries. 

The Group has attempted to reduce the impact of short-terrn fluctuations of currencies on its revenue through a 
centralized management of exchange risks and the use of derivatives. Nevertheless, in the long-term, the significant 
and long lasting variations in exchange rates could affect the Group's competitive position in the foreign markets and 
its results of operations. 

The Group hedges its remaining net estimated short term exposure according to the decisions of a dedicated 
committee. The hedging cover is generally at least 75% of the exposure. This exposure includes a recorded 
exposure, which is made of ali recognized trade receivables, trade payable and borrowings denominated in a foreign 
currency, and an unrecorded exposure, which is the forecasted sales and purchases over a six-month period. 

Foreign exchanqe exposures and derivatives 

As at closing date, the exposure recorded in the balance sheet over the main currencies hedged with derivatives, 
and the nominal amount of the derivatives hedging such recorded exposures, are as follows: 

Dec 31,2013 Dec 31, 2012 restated* 
Exposition currency USD GBP AUD EUR USD GBP AUD EUR 
Financial receivables and liabilities 134.4 (3.9) 13.0 55.6 (5.3) 2.4 0.2 
Trade receivables and payables 3.5 2.4 2.1 3.4 (0.7) 2.4 2.9 (4.6) 
Nominal amount of derivatives (133.3) 1.4 (2.3) (13.4) (58.8) 0.7 (6.3) 0.7 

Net recorded exposure on main currencies 4.6 (0.1) (0. 2~ 3.0 (3.9! (2.2l (1.0~ (3.7) 

Tarkett uses forward exchange contracts and options when hedging with derivatives its exposure to foreign currency 
risk in respect of both recognized receivables and payables and forecasted transactions covering a forward six­
month period. When necessary, forward exchange contracts are rolled over. 

Tarkett classifies the currency hedging contracts covering operating transactions as cash flow hedges and records 
them at fair value in the balance sheet. The fair value of these contracts at the balance sheet date amounted to a 
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latent liability of €0.05m (2012: asset of €0.5m). Of this fair value, the amount reported directly in equity is an 
unrealised loss of €0.1 rn (2012: unrealised loss of €0.1 rn). The difference is recognised in the in come statement and 
represents the change in the time value of currency options hedging forecasted transactions and in the fair value of 
forward contracts or options hedging recognised transactions. 

The net effect of fair value variations in the income statement of the year represents a charge of €0.5m (2012: 
revenue of €0.1 rn). Ail the potential gains and losses reported directly in equity are expected to enter into the 
determination of profit and loss of the coming 12 months. 

Monetary items denominated in foreign currencles 

When financing its foreign subsidiaries, the Group incurs exposure to foreign currency risk on intra-group loans and 
borrowings denominated in foreign currencies. The Group minimises this risk either (i) by borrowing in the same 
currency or (ii) by entering into currency swaps or forwards reflecting the maturity of the hedged item, with the aim 
that fluctuations in the swaps' fair values will offset, in profit or loss, the foreign exchange gains and losses arising 
from conversion of the hedged monetary items. 

At December 31, 2013, the main financial exposures so covered are Euro against US dollar for €134.4m, against 
British pound for €3.9m and against Swedish crown for €0.1 m. The fair value of these contracts, at the balance 
sheet date amounted to a latent liability of €0.3m. 

2 - LIQUIDITY RISKS 

2.1 Future cash flows over financial instruments 

The foilowlng figures show the estimated future cash flows over the interest-bearing loans and borrowings. The 
amounts in currency are converted at closing rate. 

The estimate of the future cash flows on interests is based on the forecasted debt amortization, and the future 
floating rate interests are calculated on the assumption of a crystallisation of the interest rates outstanding as of the 
closing date, except if a better estimate is available. 

Financlalllabllltles Dac 31,2013 12 months or lesa 2vears 3 to 5 vaars More than 5 vears 
Carrylng Contractual 

nominal lnterests nominal intarasts nominal lnterest nominal lnterest 
amount cash flow 

lntarest baarlng loans 
Bank Loans 521.6 562.0 22.7 10.2 33.8 9.4 465.1 20.8 
Other Loans 0.4 0.4 0.1 0.1 0.2 
Bank overdrafts 1.1 1.1 1.1 
Finance Jease obUg_ations 2.6 2.6 0.6 0.6 1.2 0.2 
Total 525.7 566.1 24.5 10.2 34.5 9.4 466.5 20.8 0.2 

Othar Flnanclal Llabllltias 
Trade Payable 219.8 219.8 219.8 
Other Flnanclal Liabilities non current 4.7 4.7 0.6 3.7 0.4 
Other Financial Liabilities current 5.0 5.0 5.0 
Total 229.6 229.6 224.9 0.6 3.7 0.4 
TOT AL FINANCIAL LIABILITIES 755.3 795.7 249.4 10.2 35.1 9.4 470.2 20.8 0.6 

Financlalliabllltles Dac 31,2012 rastatea• 12 months or Jess 2yeats 3 to 5 years Mora th an 5 yeatS 
Carrying Contractual 

nominal interests nominal interests nominal lntarests nominal interests 
a mount cash flow 

lnterest bearlng loans 
Bank Loans 486.5 500.1 152.2 6.1 114.4 4.0 219.9 3.5 
Asset backed facility 25.2 25.3 25.2 0.1 
Other Loans 8.5 8.5 8.1 0.1 0.3 
Bank overdrafts 0.7 0.7 0.7 
Finance lease obliQations 2.0 2.0 1.0 0.3 0.4 0.3 
Total 522.9 536.6 187.2 6.2 114.8 4.0 220.6 3.5 0.3 

Other Flnanclal Llabllltles 
Trade Payable 221.7 221 .7 221 .7 
Other Financlal Liabililies non current 6.8 6.8 4.5 2.3 
Other Financlal Uabililies current 11.6 11.6 11 .6 
Total 240.2 240.2 233.4 4.5 2.3 
TOT AL FINANCIAL LIABILITIES 763.1 776.8 420.6 6.2 119.3 4.0 222.9 3.5 0.3 

2.2 Liquidity position 
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As of December 31, 2013 the consolidated net debt (current and non-current loans and financial interest-bearing 
debts minus cash and cash equivalents} of the Group is equal to €429.0m over a total debt capacity of €1168.0m 
used in the amount of €525.7m (see note 15}. The liquidity position of the Group amounts to €739.0m, and is 
enough to cover the financial obligations related to the financial debt in 2013. 

Amount available on credit facilities 
Cash and cash equivalents 

Cee 31,2013 

642.3 
96.7 

739.0 

Dec 31, 2012 
restated* 

339.1 
81 .1 

420.2 

The €450.0m syndicated facility, the €1 OO.Om and US$40.0m term loans conta ln obligations which are ali based on 
the main following covenants: 

the ratio Net debt 1 EBITDA (as adjusted according to the definition of the credit agreements} must be lower 
than 3.0 
the ratio EBITDA 1 Net interests expanses (as adjusted according to the definition of the credit agreements} 
must be hlgher than 2.5 
cross-acceleration above certain materiality thresholds and material adverse change clauses. 

As at December 31 , 2013, the Group complies with these covenants. 

3 - CREDIT RISK 

Credit risk represents the risk of financial loss for the Group in case counterparty to a financial instrument would 
default in paying its contractual obligations. 

The financial assets potentially bearing this risk are mainly: 
cash deposits and investments, 
financial derivatives, 
accounts receivables, 
loans granted. 

The maximum potential credit risk on the financial assets is equal to their net accounting value, diminished by the 
indemnification receivable from credit insurances. 

3.1 Customer credit rlsk 

The Group considers that the exposure to counterparty risk in accounts receivables is limited, because of the great 
number of customers, its dispersion in many geographical areas, and its follow-up policy. The Group has established 
a credit policy which includes, among other, one credit limit for each customer, collections processes, and a 
computer-aided credit scoring and customer payment behaviour follow-up. Moreoverl the Group credit insurance 
schema not only provides a hedge of the maximum potential Joss in certain countries or business zones but also 
assistance and coordination in case of negotiations with counterparties at risk. Therefore the maximum potential 
counterparty risk on the accounts receivables is equal to the net accounting value of these assets minus the 
maximum indemnification receivable under the insurance schema. 

The total of receivables overdue over 60 days amounts to 8.3% of the total amount of accounts receivables at the 
December 31 1 2013 (8.4% of the total amount of accounts receivables at December 311 2012). 
The Group considers that there is no presumption of risks on outstanding receivables for less than 60 days. 

As for outstanding receivables for more than 60 daysl the Group considers that risks are limited given existing 
procedures of customer risk management (as detailed above). 

3.2 Credit risk management on equities and derivatives 

The counterparts of the Groupls financial derivatives are first rank banks or partly state-owned, and ali being in 
business relation with the Group for lending or for cash management. The policy of the Group with regard to 
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investments and cash deposits is to only invest in liquid securities and only with the first rank credit institutions that 
exist in the country where the investment is done. 

The Group is not exposed to a material risk due to any significant concentration of the risk over a specified 
counterparty, and does not anticipate any counterparty default. 

The impacts of the Credit and Debit Valuation Adjustments (CVAJDVA) in the measurement of the fair value of the 
derivative financial instruments were made on the basis of market datas available ( including the credit default swap 
rates (CDS) of the counterpart financial institutions). This impact was not material as at the closing date and was 
therefore not booked. 

Dec 31, 2013 

Fair value of derivative assets 
Fair value of derivative liabilities 
Total 

Dec 31, 2012 restated* 

Fair value of derivative assets 
Fair value of derivative liabilities 
Total 

Gross amounts as 
presented in Balance 

Sheet 

0.6 
(2.9) 
(2.3) 

Gross amounts of 
financial instruments 

in the statement of 
financial position 

0.5 
(9.2) 
(8.7) 

Impact of offsetting 
ru les 

(0.6) 
0.6 

Impact of offsettlng 
ru les 

(0.5) 
0.5 

4- FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES 

Oec 31,2013 
Non eurre nt flnancial a-ts valued at amortiud value 
Non eurre nt flnancial assets valued at fair value 
Al:counts recelvables 
Cash and cath equivalents 
lnterest-bearlng loans and borrowings 
Otl\er flnanclalllabilities, non current 
Other flnanclal tlabilltles, current 
Accounts payables 

Ote 31, 2012 restated" 
Non ci.WI'ent financlal aswts valued at amortized valu. 
Non eurre nt ftnanclal aswts valued at fair valu. 
Al:counts receivables 
Cath and ca !ill equivalents 
lnterest-bearing loans and borrowings 
Other financial liabilltln, non current 
Other flnancial Uablllties, eurre nt 
Accounts payables 
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Cash and 
Hedging cash 

DeriwtileS equiwlents 

0.7 

96.7 

3.1 

Cash and 
Hedging cash 

Deriwliles ~s 

(0.1) 
81.1 

8.8 

As sets 
designated 
at fairwlue Liabilities at 

through profit Loans and amortized Canying 
& loss receiwbles cost a mount 

7.6 7.6 
19.2 19.9 

7J9.7 279.7 
96.7 

525.7 525.7 
4.7 4.7 
1.9 5.0 

219.8 219.8 

As sels 
designated 
at fair lelue Liabilities at 

through prollt Loans and am<lf1ized Canying 
& loss receiwbles cos\ a mount 

7.2 7.2 
22.1 22.1 

267.7 287.6 
81.1 

522 9 522.9 
68 6.8 
2.8 11.6 

244.3 244.3 

Netamount 

(2.3) 
(2.3) 

Netamount 

(8.7) 
(8.7) 

Fair 
value Level1 Level2 Llvel3 

7.6 7.6 
19.9 19.9 

7J9.7 
96.7 

., 
96.7 

525.7 525.7 
4.7 4.7 
5.0 3.1 

219.8 

Fair 
value Level1 Level2 Levet 3 

7.2 7.2 
22.1 

~ 22.1 
287.6 
81.1 81.1 

522.9 522.9 
6.8 6.8 

11.6 8.8 
244.3 
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NOTE 25- LEASE COMMITMENTS 

The Group's operating lease commitments are mainly commitments for buildings, vehicles, computer hardwares and 
softwares, offices. 
Future minimum rentai commitments under operating leases with initial or remaining non-cancellable terms in 
excess of one year, are summarlsed below: 

Operating leases 

Dec 31, 2013 
Dec 31, 2012 

restated* 
Future minimum lease payments 
Less than 1 year 13.6 

21 .9 
3.4 

14.2 
24.3 
3.1 

1 to 5 years 
More than 5 years 
Total future minimum lease payments 38.9 41.6 

NOTE 26- OTHER CONTINGENCIES 

Asbestos 

One of the Group subsidiaries has been named co-defendant in asbestos related lawsuits involving persona! 
injuries. Expected costs of the current or future cases are covered by Group's insurances, sellers' guarantee granted 
by third-parties and by provisions that management, based on the advice and information provided by its legal 
counsels, considers as sufficient. 

Guarantees 

Tarkett: 

Other 

has granted a General lndemnity Agreement of a maximum amount up to $75.0m in favour of Federal 
lnsurance Company in consideration of this company to execute security bonds in favour of Fieldturf 
Tarkett lnc and other subsidiaries. The outstanding security bonds at closing date amounts to $53.6m, 
has provided its guarantee on 50% of a credit facility of up to €10.0m granted to its joint venture 
subsidiary Laminate Park, and 
has provided its guarantee to the pensions insurer Pri-Pensionsgaranti to secure the pensions 
commitments of Tarkett AB for an amount of SEK163.2m. 
has provided its guarantee to a raw material supplier of its subsidiary Morton Extrusion T echnik to 
secure its payables up to €5.0m. 
has provided its guarantee to the lending banks of the Syndicated Revolving Credit Facility signed on 
June 27, 2011 in order to allow Tarkett Finance lnc to become an additional borrower up to $100.0m. 
However, Tarkett Finance lnc was not borrowing under this facility as at closing date. 
has provided its guarantee to the lending bank of an asset backed facility of €55.0m to the extent that 
this facility, aimed to finance the Group, was subscribed by its subsidiary Tarkett France SAS for 
technical reasons. Tarkett has also provided its guarantee to the bank of Tarkett Limited (UK) and 
Poligras (Spain) to secure technical overdraft facilities in these companies, for a total amount of €3.8mn 
or equivalent. 
Besides, in the ordinary course of their business, Tarkett and severa! other subsidiaries have given 
payment guarantees to diverse customs, utilities, rentai, cash pooling or trade finance operators, those 
guarantees being unmaterial on an individual and aggregated level. 

ln late March 2013, the "Autorité de la concurrence" (French Competition Authority) launched investigations against 
several flooring manufacturers, including Tarkett, in relation to possible anti-competitive practices in the French 
market for vinyl flooring. 
The investigations are still ongoing. The timing of their finalization is currently not known and it is not yet possible to 
evaluate their potential outcome. 
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NOTE 27- RELATED PARTIES 

ln compliance with lAS 24, the Group has identified the following related parties: 
Joint ventures (see §1 ). 
Société d'Investissement Deconinck S.I.D. SA (see §2). 
Kohlberg Kravis Roberts KKR (see §3). 
Members of the Executive Management Committee and of the Supervisory Board of T arkett. 

1-Joint ventures 

Ali transactions between tully consolidated entities are eliminated in consolidation. 
Transactions with the joint venture are entered into on an arm's length basis. 

Joint ventures 
The only entity with activity which remains jointly controlled is the entity Laminate Park jointly held with Sonae group 
in Germany. 

Loans to Laminate Park at the end of December 2013 amounts to €14.2m and are declared as long term loans. 
They represent 1.4% of the Group interest-bearing loans and borrowings. 

The sale of goods to Tarkett at the end of December 2013 amounts to €32.9m (€32.1m at the end of December 
2012). They represent 0.6% of the Group sale of goods. 

The purchase of services from Tarkett at the end of December 2013 amounts to €(2.1 )m (€(2.5)m at the end of 
December 2012). 

The Group's transactions with the joint venture may be summarised as follows: 

Joint ventures 
Sale of goods to Tarkett 
Purchase of sel'\1ces from Tarkett 
Loans from Tarkett 

2- S.I.D. 

Dec 31, 2013 

32.9 
(2.1) 
14.2 

Dec 31, 2012 
restated* 

32.1 
(2.5) 
14.2 

Société d'Investissement Deconinck S.I.D. holds 50.1% of Tarkett's share capital and as such, controls and 
coordinates the activities of the Tarkett Group. Tarkett is linked by a contract to S.I .D. in respect of management 
services which are remunerated on the basis of the actual costs incurred by S.I.D. 

ln 2013, S.I .D. invoiced a total of €0.1m of management services. 

3 - KKR International Flooring 2 SARL 

KKR International Flooring 2 SARL holds 21 .5% of Tarkett's share capital and as such, controls and coordinates the 
activities of the Tarkett Group. Tarkett is linked by a contract to KKR in respect of management services which are 
remunerated on the basis of the actual costs incurred by KKR. 

ln 2013, KKR International Flooring 2 SARL invoiced a total of €0.6m of management services (€0.6m in 2012). 

NOTE28-SUBSEQUENTEVENTS 

There is no subsequent event to be disclosed. 

Consolidated financial statements 
Year ended December 31 , 2013 55{57 



Tarkett 
NOTE 29 - MAIN CONSOLIDATED ENTITIES 

Companles 

G: Fully consolidated 
E: Accounted for using the Equity Method 
NC: Non consolidated 

C001 Tarkett AB 
C002 Tarkett AS 
C003 Tarkett Oy 
C009 Tarkett lnc. Delaware 
C012 Tarkett Australla Ply. Ltd 
C018 Tarkett AIS 
C037 Tarkett Polska Sp.ZO.O. 
C061 Fademac 
C062 Tarkett Aspen 
C081 Laminate Park Gmbh & Co KG 
C214 Tarkett Holding GmbH 
C220 Tarkett 
C221 Tarkett Sen.ices 
C409 Tarkett GDL SA 
C411 Tarkett Capital SA 
C417 Tarkett SpA 
C418 Tarkett Produtos lntemacionais S.A. 
C419 Tarkett Monoprosopi Ltd. 
C425 Tarkett Floors S .A. 
C427 Tarkett Asia Pacifie Ltd 
C428 Tarkett Hong Kong Ltd. 
C429 Tari(ett Floor co~ring (Shanghai) Co 
C433 Tarkett France 
C434 Tarkett Bois SAS 
C438 Fieldturf Tarkett SAS 
C441 Tarkett lnc. 
C452 ZAO Tarkett 
C453 ZAO Tarkett Rus 
C454 Tarkett Sommer 000 
C455 Tarkett d.o.o. 
C456 Tarkett SEE 
C457 Tarkett UA 
C459 Tarkett Kaz 
C460 Tarkett Kft 
C461 Tarkett BEL 
C471 Fieldturf Poligras SA 
C473 Morton ExtrusionsTechnik GmbH 
C474 Fieldturf Benelux B. V . 
C606 Tarkett Ltd. 
C656 Somalré 
C754 Sintelon RS 
C755 Sintelon d.o.o. 
C756 Galerija Podova d.o.o. 
C757 Galerija Podova - Sintelon Doo 
C758 Sintelon UA 
C759 V inisin Ooo 
C801 Tandus Flooring, Jnc 
C802 Now Scotia Ltd 
C803 Tandus Flooring Asia Pte Ltd 
C804 Tandus Flooring US, LLC 
C805 CAF Extrusion LLC 
C806 Tandus Flooring Limited 
C807 Tandus Flooring Suzhou 
C808 Tandus Flooring Canada, GP 
C809 Tandus Flooring lndia Private Limited 
C846 Tarkett Enterprises lnc. 
C847 Domco Products Texas LP 
C848 Tarkett Alabama lnc. 
C849 Tarkett Finance lnc 
C850 Tarkett USA lnc. 
C854 Tarkett Texas Holding lnc. 
C862 Texas lile Manufacturing LLC 
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Country 1 Consolidation 
method 

Sweden G 
Norway G 
Finland G 

United States G 
Australia G 
Den mark G 
Pola nd G 
Brazil G 
Turkey G 

Gennany E 
Germ any G 
France Mother company 
France G 

Luxembourg G 
Luxembourg G 

Ital y G 
Portugal G 
Greece G 
Spain G 

Hong Kong G 
Hong Kong G 

China G 
France G 
France G 
France G 
Canada G 
Russia G 
Russia G 
Russia G 
Serbia G 
Serbia G 

Ukraine G 
Kazakhstan G 

Hungary G 
Rep. of Belarus G 

Spain G 
Gennany G 

Netherlands G 
United Kingdom G 

Luxembourg G 
Serbia G 
Serbia G 
Serbia G 
Bos nia G 
Ukraine G 
Ukraine G 

United States G 
United States G 

Singapore G 
United States G 
United States G 
United States G 

China G 
Canada G 

lndia G 
United States G 
United States G 
United States G 
United States G 
United States G 
United States NC 
United States G 

'Yo Ownershlp '"~• Ownershlp at 
at Dec 31 , 2013 Dec 31, 2012 

100% 100% 
100% 100% 
100% 100% 
100% 100% 
100% 100% 
100% 100% 
100% 100% 
100% 100% 
70% 70% 
50% 50% 
100% 100% 
100% 100% 
100% -
100% 100% 
100% 100% 
100% 100% 
100% 100% 
100% 100% 
100% 100% 
100% 100% 
70% 70% 
70% 70% 
100% 100% 
100% 100% 
100% 100% 
100% 100% 
100% 100% 
100% 100% 
100% 100% 
100% 100% 
100% 100% 
100% 100% 
100% 100% 
100% 100% 
100% 100% 
100% 96% 
100% 100% 
100% 100% 
100% 100% 
100% 100% 
100% 100% 
100% 100% 
100% 100% 
100% 100% 
100% 100% 
100% 100% 
100% 100% 
100% 100% 
100% 100% 
100% 100% 
100% 100% 
100% 100% 
100% 100% 
100% 100% 
100% 100% 
100% 100% 
100% 100% 
100% 100% 
100% 100% 
100% 100% 

- 100% 
100% 75% 
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. 

Companles Country 
Con110lldatlon %0wnerahlp "• Ownership at 

method at Dec 31, 2013 Dec 31 , 2012 

C863 Tarkett IFA lnc. United States G 100% 100% 
C872 Fieldturf lnc. Canada G 100% 100% 
C878 Les Installations Sportiws Defargo lnc. Canada NC - 100% 
C886 Easy Turf lnc. United States G 51 % 51% 
C889 Beynon Sports Surfaces lnc. United States G 100% 100% 
C890 Fieldturf Tarkett USA Holdings lnc. United States G 100% 100% 
C893 Fieldturf USA, lnc. United States G 100% 100% 
C896 Air Fieldturf lnc. United States NC - 100% 
C950 Johnsonite lnc. United States G 100% 100% 
C951 Johnsonite Canada lnc. Canada G 100% 100% 
C960 Diamond W Supply Co. United States G 100% 100% 

The percentages of equity and voting rights held for each entity of the Group are identical. They include put options 
where applicable. 
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